
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
Acrobat 9 or Adobe Reader 9, or later.

Get Adobe Reader Now!

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




Hillcrest Academy 
Demonstration of Sufficient Progress 


1	
  
	
  


Hillcrest Academy 


Hillcrest Academy, formerly Destiny Community School, went through a major shift in January of 2013 
when the charter was transferred to our current charter holder and Governing Board.  The previous 
administration was forced to combine grade levels due to low enrollment and budgetary considerations in 
the end of the 2011-2012 school year and continued with that model during the first half of the 2012-2013 
school year.  While Destiny Community School earned a letter grade of ‘B’, the Academic Performance 
Rating (Dashboard) for 2012 showed an overall rating of 61.25 (Does Not Meet Standard).  When the 
new administration came on in January of 2013 our immediate concern was to separate the grade levels 
into individual classrooms with a teacher for each grade level.  Academic performance and growth was 
the driving force of our new administration.  By the end of the 2012-2013 school year Hillcrest Academy 
remained with a letter grade of ‘B’, but the Dashboard for 2013 showed a significant increase to 83.12 
(Meets Standard), less than 6 points from an ‘Exceeds Standard’ overall rating.  Our school maintained a 
B for the 2013-2014 school year.  In an effort to improve in the upcoming school year we have purchased 
Beyond Textbooks from the Vail School District.  Beyond Textbooks (BT) is a Scope and Sequence and 
calendar based on a standards-first approach and developed by teachers.  BT utilizes an ‘Unwrapped 
Document’ which outlines the standard being taught, duration and rigor, utilizes student-friendly 
language, and what mastery of a standard means.  Once a standard has been taught BT also uses formative 
assessments to check for mastery and outlines a ‘Reteach and Enrich’ program.  BT also partners with 
Galileo, which we currently use, for summative assessments that are aligned with the BT calendar to 
ensure long-term retention of the standard-based curriculum. 


Growth 


1a. SGP Math and Reading 


The Academic Performance Rating for 2012 showed growth in Math but insufficient growth in Reading.  
The previous administration did not address this insufficient growth but when we shifted administration 
in January 2013 it became a priority for us.  Our reading curriculum was examined and updated to ensure 
alignment with Arizona’s College and Career Ready Standards (ACCRS).  Even with sufficient growth in 
Math we also examined our math curriculum.  A comprehensive system to monitor the instructional 
practices of our teachers was instituted in January of 2013.  The use of assessments to monitor student 
progress was fragmented under the previous administration so this was another of our priorities that was 
addressed.  An in-depth Professional Development (PD) plan was designed to ensure that our teachers 
have access to the resources they need to increase their own knowledge for implementation into 
classroom instruction.  These changes led to an increase on our 2013 Dashboard to a measure of 63 (+9.5) 
in Math and 70 (+22.5) in Reading.  The Student Growth Percentile for 2014 dropped to 51 (-19) in Math 
and 42 (-21) in Reading.  This lack of growth is of great concern and prompted our decision to adopt BT. 


Curriculum 


Grades K through 8th Math: 
 
Destiny Community School utilized Saxon Math prior to the shift in administration in January 2013.  As 
part of our priority for academic integrity we formed Professional Learning Communities (PLC’s) 
comprised of teacher from various grade levels and tasked these PLC’s with critiquing our current 
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curriculum.  Saxon Math uses an incremental, distributed, cumulative approach to student learning.  With 
Sufficient Growth shown on the 2012 Dashboard we determined that we would continue with Saxon 
Math for the remainder of the 2012-2013 school year and our students showed even more Sufficient 
Growth on the 2013 Dashboard (+9.5 over 2012).  With two years of sufficient growth Saxon Math 
continued to be utilized as our basic math curriculum.  For the 2014-2015 school year we have partnered 
with Beyond Textbooks, from the Vail school district, and adopted a completely ACCRS-aligned scope 
and sequence.  Beyond Textbooks includes calendar maps as well as formative assessments to ensure 
mastery of each standard as it is covered.  If mastery is not shown, based on less than 4 out of 5 on the 
formative assessment, the student is placed in a re-teach group for twenty minutes a day while those that 
showed mastery are challenged with an enrichment activity. 
 
Grades K through 4th Reading: 
 
Prior to our administration in January of 2013, the curriculum for reading was fragmented at best.  Some 
teachers were using Spalding, others Reading Street, and still others were building lessons using 
supplemental materials from various online sources.  Our newly formed PLC’s, with several new teachers 
from separating grade levels, were also tasked with critiquing our various reading curriculum to 
determine a plan to finish the year.  Reading Street was decided on as our primary instructional material 
so that some sense of continuity between grade level progressions could be established.  Another reason 
for the choice of Reading Street as primary instructional material was the ability to upgrade to the new 
Common Core aligned version of Reading Street available from Pearson for the 2013-2014 school year.  
Reading Street Common Core will continue to be our primary resource for reading for K-3 for the 2014 
school year while still adhering to Scope and Sequence outlined by BT. 
 
Grades 4th through 8th Reading: 
 
After January of 2013 we, the administration and the PLC for grades 5th through 8th, decided that 
additional instruction materials were needed for the upper grades.  For the remainder of the 2013 school 
year the use of rich literature was an emphasis with supplemental materials pulled together by our PLC to 
address any gaps that may have occurred when the grade levels were combined in the first half of the 
year.  For the 2013-2014 school year we decided to add some additional instructional material for grades 
4 through 8.  While continuing to emphasize rich literature for grades 5th through 8th we added an 
intensive Grammar and Writing textbook from Hake Publishing.  Grammar and Writing by Hake employs 
a similar incremental, distributed, cumulative, approach that showed such good results from Saxon Math.  
We purchased Grammar and Writing for grades 4th through 8th.  Rich literature, chosen from the 
suggested chapter books in the appendix for Common Core Standards will continue to be utilized as a 
resource in reading, again aligned with the BT Scope and Sequence. 
 
Instruction 


When our new administration took over in January of 2013 there was not an apparent system in place to 
monitor the integration of ACCRS at Destiny Community School.  It didn’t help that the Principal for 
Destiny Community School was also a classroom teacher with little time to monitor and guide instruction 
in other classrooms.  Along with the separation of grade levels we brought in a new Principal as well.  A 
plan was designed and implemented by the Principal and Curriculum Director, with input from our 
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current and new teachers, to evaluate instructional effectiveness and integration of ACCRS at Hillcrest 
Academy.  Formation of PLC’s with dedicated time set aside for their collaboration allowed for teachers 
to review individual students’ strengths and weaknesses.  This collaboration allowed our new teachers to 
gain insight into the levels of their new students and formulate plans to ensure that the year finished with 
adequate emphasis on the appropriate standards.  Requirements for turning in Lesson Plans were 
previously in place, but with the old Principal also teaching classes, it’s unclear whether or not these plans 
were being reviewed with any frequency.   


Starting in January 2013 our Principal and Curriculum Director were able to monitor classroom 
instruction through weekly review of lesson plans.  The Principal and Curriculum Director also began a 
number of informal (drive-by) evaluations and formal, end-of-year, evaluations were performed.  With 
the beginning of a new school year under our new administration a formal method for documenting 
lesson plans digitally was installed.  Along with informal evaluations done by our Principal and 
Curriculum Director we also required that each teacher spend ten minutes in their peers classroom for 
additional informal evaluations.  This method of peer review was started to gain additional data for the 
formal evaluations at the end of each semester as well as allow teachers to ‘steal’ teaching techniques and 
classroom management skills that they observe in other effective teachers. 


For the 2014-2015 school year all of our administration attended a training offered by the Arizona 
Department of Education to learn about the ‘Arizona Framework for Measuring Educator Effectiveness’.  
This year we will be using the Framework developed by the Department of Education for observation and 
determination of Highly Effective Teachers and Leaders. 


Assessment 


In January of 2013 the only data that our new administration had from the previous year was the Arizona 
Instrument to Measure Standards (AIMS) from the Spring of 2012 as well as the Dashboard from 2012 
(61.23 Overall Rating, Does Not Meet Standard).  The previous administration began the year with an 
assessment from Spectrum but the entire school was not assessed.  Some grade levels didn’t even do the 
beginning of the year Pre-Test until our new administration tried looking for data and discovered that 
entire classes hadn’t been assessed.  Any attempts by us to glean useful information from the Spectrum 
assessment were futile.  When AIMS results were published after the 2012-2013 school year we had some 
data to compare growth between the 2012 and 2013 AIMS results.  When the 2013 Dashboard was 
published we were finally able to see that the dedicated work by our teachers had paid off.  The overall 
Rating for Hillcrest Academy was 83.12 (+21.87 from 2012).   


While the Dashboard showed improvement from 2012, waiting until the end of the year to determine if 
student growth occurred was not optimal.  We researched various external assessment options, while 
keeping in mind that assessment can guide instruction (formative), evaluate our curriculum, demonstrate 
effective instruction techniques, and gauge student growth (summative).  Our formative assessments 
include, but are not limited to, observations, questioning, discussion, graphic organizers, peer/self 
assessment, quizzes, and kinesthetic (lab) assessments.  The purpose of Formative assessment is to give 
relative, continual, explicit feedback to students allowing them to determine the gap between what they 
know and where they are going.  The summative assessments that we decided to adopt for the 2013-2014 
school year include Chapter Exams, Galileo Benchmarks, and the end-of-year AIMS assessment.   
Galileo by Assessment Technology Incorporated (ATI) allowed us to schedule periodic benchmarks in 
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association with the Arizona Charter School Association’s (ACSA) Quality Schools Program so that 
growth could be continually tracked through the year rather than waiting for AIMS results when it may be 
too late. 


For the 2014-2015 school year, with the adoption of Beyond Textbooks, formative assessments will be 
given after the completion of each standard for math and reading.  Five questions, three multiple choice 
and two extended response, are used to gauge mastery.  If a student correctly answers 4 questions they 
will be placed in to an enrichment activity while those who answers fewer attend a ‘re-teaching’ of that 
standard.  Summative assessments given every quarter using the Galileo software cover the standards 
taught during that quarter. 


Results of the Analysis of AIMS are attached. 


Professional Development 


For the first half of the 2011-2012 school year the academic calendar had an early-release schedule for 
each Friday so that Teachers could engage in Professional Development (PD).  There exists no evidence 
that any PD was occurring on these early release days.  Beginning in January of 2013, with our new 
administration, we used these early-release Friday’s to train our teachers in the new expectations for 
Hillcrest Academy.  The most effective PD that we implemented over the last half of the year involved 
the creation of our PLC’s.  These PLC’s allowed us to evaluate our current curriculum, identify gaps in 
instruction, identify individual student needs, and collaborate to increase instructional effectiveness.   


In the summer before the 2012-2013 school year we were able to schedule several curriculum trainings 
with the appropriate providers to ensure the integrity of our curriculum as well as its alignment with 
ACCRS.  Also during the 2013-2014 school year we have implemented our new assessment plan utilizing 
Galileo.  With this new assessment tool several PD days were scheduled to introduce the program, 
schedule assessments, and train our teachers how to analyze the data from the Galileo assessments. 


In June of 2014 our administration attended an Introduction to Beyond Textbooks called ‘Gaining the 
Vision’.  In July our administration and key teachers attended the same workshop to ensure that BT 
would be compatible with our current mission and vision.  Having decided to adopt BT, our faculty for 
this year attended a ‘BT 101’ training to learn how to navigate the system.  Additional training with BT 
will continue throughout the year. 


1b. SGP bottom 25% Math and Reading 


On the 2012 Dashboard Destiny Community School showed sufficient growth in math for their bottom 
25% but fell short in Reading.  On the Dashboard for 2013 neither the math nor reading SGP for the 
bottom 25% was rated.  The six students who were at Hillcrest Academy when our new administration 
moved in have been analyzed from their 2012 to 2013 AIMS results.  Three out of these six bottom 25% 
in reading MET on 2013 AIMS for reading with all but one showing in increase in scale score from 2012-
2013 (Table 1.).  The six students identified as bottom 25% in math also showed an increase in scale 
score from 2012 to 2013 (Table 2.), however only one of these six MET on 2013 AIMS for math.  The 
median growth percentile for the 2013-2014 school decreased to 56.5 (-5) from the previous year. 
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Curriculum 


Reading and Math supplements are included with the math curriculum from Saxon and Reading Street.  
Reading is taught from the curriculum maps and chapter books can be replaced for lower level readers.  
Our strategy is to challenge all students at the same level and “fill in the gaps” academically with any 
supplemental concepts 


Instruction 


The identified students in the bottom 25% for both math and reading are continually monitored now that 
we can use Galileo to track their progress.  Teachers now have the ability to address specific deficiencies 
that are identified by our current assessment model.   


Assessment 


The Galileo benchmark assessments for the current 2013-2014 school year have been analyzed for all of 
our students, but special interest is paid to monitor the continued growth of our students identified as 
bottom 25% in reading and math.  Three of the six students identified for reading are trending to Meet the 
Standard according to Galileo’s Developmental Level Score, with two Approaching.  Four students show 
a significant increase from the Pre-Test to their latest Benchmark at grade level.  Four of the five students 
for math show improvement as well. 


Professional Development 
 
One of our priorities that our new administration has committed resources to is ‘Data-Driven Decision 
Making’.  Several PD days were dedicated to learning the Galileo program and how to interpret the data 
generated and how to effectively use the data to drive lesson-planning to increase the success of all our 
students, bottom 25% included. 
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Proficiency 


2a. Percent Passing 


From the 2012 Dashboard where Math (60) and Reading (72) were both measured as Does Not Meet 
Standard, the changes that were implemented after January of 2013 led to a 2013 Dashboard measure for 
Math of 71 (+11) and Reading of 82 (+10) both of which measured as Meets Standard.  The narratives 
above for Growth can be repeated to account for the increase in Percent Passing.  The results from AIMS 
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2014 saw a drop of 12% passing, down to 65%, for all students reading and math.  This decrease in 
percent passing was an additional reason Beyond Textbooks was purchase for the upcoming school year.  


2b. Composite School Comparison 


Composite School comparison from the 2012 Dashboard to our 2013 Dashboard also show an increase 
from Does Not Meet Standard to Meets Standard.  Math increased by 9.6 (-3.3 to 6.3) while Reading 
increased by 6.6 (-4.3 to 2.3).  We believe that the reasons stated in the narrative for growth are also 
responsible for our increase in Composite School Comparison.  With better data to critique and adjust our 
instructional effectiveness we expect a continual increase in the coming years Dashboard as well. 
 
2c. Subgroup ELL  


We only have three ELL students currently enrolled at Hillcrest Academy.  One of these three is in 
second grade so there is no AIMS data available, however Galileo predicts approaching the standards for 
both reading and math.  The other two students are both in the 5th grade and show an increase in AIMS 
scale score for the last two years.  Galileo predicts both approaching and meeting for this current year. 


Curriculum 


Supplemental materials from curriculum providers specifically for ELL have been adopted and are used 
on an as-needed basis.  Beyond Textbooks includes additional materials for ELL. 


Instruction 


With only three ELL students, monitoring instruction for these students is not much different than 
monitoring instruction for all students as addressed previously in the narrative. 


Assessment 


Our current ELL students are tested twice a year using AZELLA to monitor their growth towards moving 
out of the ELL program.  Galileo is used to assess their academic growth. 


Professional Development 


Before the school year began curriculum providers did additional training for using ELL materials.  Our 
PLC’s also discuss the needs of at-risk groups, including ELL, at their meetings. 


2c. Subgroup FRL   


Currently 52% of our students qualify for Free or Reduced Lunch.  When our current administration came 
into the school in January of 2012 there were no programs in place to address at-risk groups.  After school 
clubs and activities were started to allow students to spend additional time in an academic atmosphere.  
We also instituted a teacher-led tutoring program (JOLT) for students determined by their classroom 
teacher to be below expectations.  Monthly activities and events were also planned to promote parent 
involvement in our school. 
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2c. Subgroup SPED   


We have two students currently receiving services through our special education department.  One of 
these students has MET the requirements on AIMS in both reading and math for several years and 
EXCELLED in both last year.  The other student is APPROACHING in reading and MET in math with 
Galileo showing that both math and reading are trending towards MEETING this year.  


Curriculum 


The special education department uses a variety of recourses for reading and math. Due to the number of 
students serviced in reading and math (2 total), the variety of ages, and scope of IEP goals, various 
instructional supports are used by the special education teacher to target IEP goals in reading and math. 
All materials use in the teaching processed are aligned to instruction standards and checked through the 
submission of lesson plans every week. The Special Education teacher has access to all sped student 
scores and can create materials to supplement instruction. The Special education department also meets 
with the general education teachers to verify what standards are being focused on in the classroom. 
Special education staff then plans lessons that support the general education teacher and align what is 
being taught in the classroom. The special education department also reviews grade level curriculum 
maps and pacing guides to help keep them closely aligned to the general education classroom.  
Assignments are modified to the student’s ability level and special need.  
 
Instruction 
 
Currently special education department is servicing two students. Our School embraces the philosophy of 
full inclusion, believing that special education students can best be educated in the regular classroom. Our 
teachers accept responsibility for all students in their classroom and modify, accommodate and adjust 
teaching techniques and classroom activities to meet the unique learning abilities of all students. Special 
education staff supports the regular classroom teacher with this process. There are not two distinctly 
different types of students, e.g. “special” and “regular”. All students are individuals with their own unique 
set of physical, intellectual and psychological characteristics that influence their instructional needs. 
There are not two discrete sets of instructional methods – one set for “special” students and another for 
“regular” students. Individualized instructional programs are designed for each student.   


• Inclusion is the underlying philosophy by which all students are educated. 
• All students are educated with chronologically age appropriate peers. 
• All students are educated full time in the general education classroom. 
• All students learn and develop individually and the curriculum is modified or adapted to allow 


students to progress at their individual rates. Students are not penalized for the inability to 
progress at grade level. 


• General education teachers assume responsibility to teach and meet the cognitive, affective and social 
needs of all students with special education teachers and staff providing support. 
 
Assessment 
 
 IEP Goals and State Standards--The Special Education teacher uses the  
Individual Education Plan to develop student goals. These goals selected are aligned with the State 
Standards and Common Core. The state standards were used when writing the goals for the 2013-2014 
school year that make up the current Individual Education Plans (IEP’s). The Special Education 
department will change to Common Core in the next school year. 
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3.  State Accountability 


3a. Our letter grade for the 2013 year was a ‘B’ and we maintained a ‘B’ in the 2014 year as well.  Our 
current Governing Board and Administration will not settle on a ‘B’ and continue to investigate methods 
and curriculum to continually grow. 
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Aims	
  Test	
  Spring	
  2013	
  


3rd	
  Grade	
  Reading	
  


Strands/Concepts	
   Number	
  Possible	
   Average	
   Percent	
  Average	
  
Strand	
  1:	
  Reading	
  Process	
   24	
   18.1	
   75%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  	
  Print	
  Concepts	
   4	
   2.4	
   60%	
  
Concept	
  3:	
  	
  Phonics	
   5	
   4.1	
   82%	
  
Concept	
  4:	
  Vocabulary	
   6	
   4.6	
   77%	
  
Concept	
  6:	
  Comprehension	
   9	
   7	
   78%	
  
Strand	
  2:	
  Comprehending	
  Literary	
  Text	
   12	
   7.1	
   59%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Elements	
  of	
  Literature	
   12	
   8.1	
   68%	
  
Strand	
  3:	
  Comprehending	
  Informational	
  Text	
   18	
   13.5	
   75%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Expository	
  Text	
   6	
   4.5	
   75%	
  
Concept	
  2:	
  Functional	
  Text	
   6	
   4.3	
   72%	
  
Concept	
  3:	
  Persuasive	
  Text	
  	
   6	
   4.8	
   80%	
  


Total	
   54	
  
	
  


72%	
  
	
  


4th	
  Grade	
  Reading	
  


Strands/Concepts	
   Number	
  Possible	
   Average	
   Average	
  Percentage	
  
Strand	
  1:	
  Reading	
  Process	
   12	
   6.8	
   57%	
  
Concept	
  4:	
  Vocabulary	
   4	
   2.2	
   55%	
  
Concept	
  6:	
  Comprehension	
   8	
   4.7	
   59%	
  
Strand	
  2:	
  Comprehending	
  Literary	
  Text	
   17	
   8.5	
   50%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Elements	
  of	
  Literature	
   17	
   8.5	
   50%	
  
Strand	
  3:	
  Comprehending	
  Informational	
  Text	
   25	
   14.0	
   56%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Expository	
  Text	
   13	
   6.2	
   48%	
  
Concept	
  2:	
  Functional	
  Text	
   6	
   3.3	
   55%	
  
Concept	
  3:	
  Persuasive	
  Text	
  	
   6	
   4.5	
   75%	
  


Total	
   54	
  
	
  


54%	
  
5th	
  Grade	
  Reading	
  


Strands/Concepts	
   Number	
  Possible	
   Average	
   Percent	
  Average	
  
Strand	
  1:	
  Reading	
  Process	
   12	
   8.4	
   70%	
  
Concept	
  4:	
  Vocabulary	
   6	
   4.5	
   75%	
  
Concept	
  6:	
  Comprehension	
   6	
   3.9	
   65%	
  
Strand	
  2:	
  Comprehending	
  Literary	
  Text	
   17	
   10.0	
   59%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Elements	
  of	
  Literature	
   17	
   10.0	
   59%	
  
Strand	
  3:	
  Comprehending	
  Informational	
  Text	
   25	
   17.1	
   68%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Expository	
  Text	
   13	
   8.8	
   68%	
  
Concept	
  2:	
  Functional	
  Text	
   6	
   3.8	
   63%	
  
Concept	
  3:	
  Persuasive	
  Text	
  	
   6	
   4.5	
   75%	
  


Total	
   54	
  
	
  


66%	
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6th	
  grade	
  Reading	
  
	
  


Strands/Concepts	
   Number	
  Possible	
   Average	
   Percent	
  Average	
  
Strand	
  1:	
  Reading	
  Process	
   12	
   8.8	
   73%	
  
Concept	
  4:	
  Vocabulary	
   6	
   4.1	
   68%	
  
Concept	
  6:	
  Comprehension	
   6	
   4.6	
   77%	
  
Strand	
  2:	
  Comprehending	
  Literary	
  Text	
   17	
   13.0	
   76%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Elements	
  of	
  Literature	
   17	
   13.0	
   76%	
  
Strand	
  3:	
  Comprehending	
  Informational	
  Text	
   25	
   16.5	
   66%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Expository	
  Text	
   13	
   7.5	
   58%	
  
Concept	
  2:	
  Functional	
  Text	
   6	
   4.5	
   75%	
  
Concept	
  3:	
  Persuasive	
  Text	
  	
   6	
   4.5	
   75%	
  


Total	
   54	
  
	
  


72%	
  
	
  
	
  
7th	
  Grade	
  Reading	
  


Strands/Concepts	
  
Number	
  
Possible	
   Average	
   Percent	
  Average	
  


Strand	
  1:	
  Reading	
  Process	
   12	
   8.60	
   72%	
  
Concept	
  4:	
  Vocabulary	
   6	
   4.10	
   68%	
  
Concept	
  6:	
  Comprehension	
   6	
   4.50	
   75%	
  
Strand	
  2:	
  Comprehending	
  Literary	
  Text	
   17	
   10.50	
   62%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Elements	
  of	
  Literature	
   13	
   8.10	
   62%	
  
Concept	
  2:	
  Historical	
  and	
  Cultural	
  Aspects	
  of	
  
Literature	
   4	
   2.40	
   60%	
  
Strand	
  3:	
  Comprehending	
  Informational	
  Text	
   25	
   17.60	
   70%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Expository	
  Text	
   12	
   9.00	
   75%	
  
Concept	
  2:	
  Functional	
  Text	
   7	
   5.30	
   76%	
  
Concept	
  3:	
  Persuasive	
  Text	
  	
   6	
   3.40	
   57%	
  


Total	
   54	
  
	
  


68%	
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8th	
  Grade	
  Reading	
  


Strands/Concepts	
  
Number	
  
Possible	
   Average	
   Percent	
  Average	
  


Strand	
  1:	
  Reading	
  Process	
   9	
   6.7	
   74%	
  
Concept	
  4:	
  Vocabulary	
   3	
   2.7	
   90%	
  
Concept	
  6:	
  Comprehension	
   6	
   4	
   67%	
  
Strand	
  2:	
  Comprehending	
  Literary	
  Text	
   18	
   12.3	
   68%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Elements	
  of	
  Literature	
   14	
   8.8	
   63%	
  
Concept	
  2:	
  Historicl	
  and	
  Cultural	
  Aspects	
  of	
  Literature	
   4	
   3.5	
   88%	
  
Strand	
  3:	
  Comprehending	
  Informational	
  Text	
   27	
   21.7	
   80%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Expository	
  Text	
   13	
   11	
   85%	
  
Concept	
  2:	
  Functional	
  Text	
   8	
   6.2	
   78%	
  
Concept	
  3:	
  Persuasive	
  Text	
  	
   6	
   4.5	
   75%	
  


Total	
   54	
  
	
  


74%	
  
	
  
3rd	
  Grade	
  Math	
  


Strands	
  /Concepts	
  
Number	
  
Possible	
   Average	
  


Percent	
  
Average	
  


Strand	
  1:	
  Number	
  and	
  Operations	
   28	
   21.1	
   75%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Number	
  Sense	
   11	
   8.3	
   75%	
  
Concept	
  2:	
  Numerical	
  Operations	
   13	
   9.9	
   76%	
  
Concept	
  3:	
  Estimation	
   4	
   3.0	
   75%	
  
Strand	
  2:	
  Data	
  Analysis,	
  Probability,	
  And	
  Discrete	
  Mathematics	
   8	
   5.9	
   74%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Data	
  Analysis	
   4	
   3.6	
   90%	
  
Concept	
  3/4:	
  Systematic	
  Listing	
  and	
  Countin/Vertex-­‐Edge	
  Graphs	
   4	
   2.3	
   58%	
  
Strand	
  3:	
  Patterns,	
  Algebra	
  and	
  Functions	
   11	
   8.4	
   76%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Patterns	
   4	
   3.3	
   83%	
  
Concept	
  3/4:	
  Alegebraic	
  Representations/Analysis	
  of	
  Change	
   7	
   5.1	
   73%	
  
Strand	
  4:	
  Geometry	
  and	
  Measurement	
   12	
   9.3	
   78%	
  
Concept	
  1/2:	
  Geometric	
  Properties/Transformation	
  of	
  Shapes	
   6	
   5.1	
   85%	
  
Concept	
  4:	
  Measurement	
   6	
   4.1	
   68%	
  
Strand	
  5:	
  Structure	
  and	
  Logic	
   7	
   5.0	
   71%	
  
Concepte	
  2:	
  	
  Logic,	
  Reasoning,	
  Problem	
  Solving,	
  Proof	
   7	
   5.0	
   71%	
  


Total	
   66	
  
	
  


75%	
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4th	
  Grade	
  Math	
  


Strands	
  /Concepts	
  
Number	
  
Possible	
   Average	
  


Percent	
  
Average	
  


Strand	
  1:	
  Number	
  and	
  Operations	
   27	
   16.8	
   62%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Number	
  Sense	
   11	
   6.3	
   57%	
  
Concept	
  2:	
  Numerical	
  Operations	
   12	
   7.7	
   64%	
  
Concept	
  3:	
  Estimation	
   4	
   2.8	
   70%	
  
Strand	
  2:	
  Data	
  Analysis,	
  Probability,	
  And	
  Discrete	
  Mathematics	
   8	
   3.8	
   48%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Data	
  Analysis	
   4	
   3.0	
   75%	
  
Concept	
  2/3/4:	
  	
  Probability/Countin/Vertex-­‐Edge	
  Graphs	
   4	
   0.8	
   20%	
  
Strand	
  3:	
  Patterns,	
  Algebra	
  and	
  Functions	
   12	
   6.8	
   57%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Patterns	
   5	
   3.0	
   60%	
  
Concept	
  3/4:	
  Alegebraic	
  Representations/Analysis	
  of	
  Change	
   7	
   3.8	
   54%	
  
Strand	
  4:	
  Geometry	
  and	
  Measurement	
   13	
   5.2	
   40%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Geometric	
  Properties	
   5	
   1.2	
   24%	
  
Concept	
  3:	
  	
  Coordinate	
  Geometry	
   4	
   2.0	
   50%	
  
Concept	
  4:	
  Measurement	
   5	
   2.0	
   40%	
  
Strand	
  5:	
  Structure	
  and	
  Logic	
   8	
   4.7	
   59%	
  
Concepte	
  1/2:	
  Algorithms/Logic,	
  Reasonin,	
  Problem	
  Solving,	
  Proof	
   8	
   4.7	
   59%	
  


Total	
   68	
  
	
  


53%	
  
	
  


5th	
  Grade	
  Math	
  


Strands	
  /Concepts	
  
Number	
  
Possible	
   Average	
  


Percent	
  
Average	
  


Strand	
  1:	
  Number	
  and	
  Operations	
   25	
   16.7	
   67%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Number	
  Sense	
   11	
   6.9	
   63%	
  
Concept	
  2:	
  Numerical	
  Operations	
   10	
   7.4	
   74%	
  
Concept	
  3:	
  Estimation	
   4	
   2.5	
   63%	
  
Strand	
  2:	
  Data	
  Analysis,	
  Probability,	
  And	
  Discrete	
  Mathematics	
   12	
   8.1	
   68%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Data	
  Analysis	
   4	
   2.4	
   60%	
  
Concept	
  2:	
  	
  Probability	
   4	
   3.0	
   75%	
  
Concept	
  3/4:	
  Systematic	
  Listing	
  and	
  Countin/Vertex-­‐Edge	
  Graphs	
   4	
   2.7	
   68%	
  
Strand	
  3:	
  Patterns,	
  Algebra	
  and	
  Functions	
   11	
   6.1	
   55%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Patterns	
   4	
   2.1	
   53%	
  
Concept	
  3/4:	
  Alegebraic	
  Representations/Analysis	
  of	
  Change	
   7	
   4.0	
   57%	
  
Strand	
  4:	
  Geometry	
  and	
  Measurement	
   10	
   6.4	
   64%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Geometric	
  Properties	
   5	
   3.5	
   70%	
  
Concept	
  4:	
  Measurement	
   5	
   2.8	
   56%	
  
Strand	
  5:	
  Structure	
  and	
  Logic	
   9	
   5.5	
   61%	
  
Concepte	
  1/2:	
  Algorithms/Logic,	
  Reasonin,	
  Problem	
  Solving,	
  Proof	
   9	
   5.5	
   61%	
  


Total	
   67	
  
	
  


63%	
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6th	
  Grade	
  Math	
  


Strands	
  /Concepts	
  
Number	
  
Possible	
   Average	
  


Percent	
  
Average	
  


Strand	
  1:	
  Number	
  and	
  Operations	
   23	
   15.0	
   65%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Number	
  Sense	
   9	
   5.4	
   60%	
  
Concept	
  2:	
  Numerical	
  Operations	
   10	
   6.1	
   61%	
  
Concept	
  3:	
  Estimation	
   4	
   2.5	
   63%	
  
Strand	
  2:	
  Data	
  Analysis,	
  Probability,	
  And	
  Discrete	
  Mathematics	
   12	
   8.9	
   74%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Data	
  Analysis	
   4	
   3.3	
   83%	
  
Concept	
  2:	
  	
  Probability	
   4	
   2.4	
   60%	
  
Concept	
  3/4:	
  Systematic	
  Listing	
  and	
  Countin/Vertex-­‐Edge	
  Graphs	
   4	
   3.3	
   83%	
  
Strand	
  3:	
  Patterns,	
  Algebra	
  and	
  Functions	
   11	
   7.6	
   69%	
  
Concept	
  1/2:	
  Patterns/	
  Functions	
  and	
  Relationships	
   4	
   3.6	
   90%	
  
Concept	
  3/4:	
  Alegebraic	
  Representations/Analysis	
  of	
  Change	
   7	
   4.0	
   57%	
  
Strand	
  4:	
  Geometry	
  and	
  Measurement	
   13	
   8.0	
   62%	
  
Concept	
  1/2:	
  Geometric	
  Properties/	
  Transformation	
  of	
  Shapes	
   4	
   2.3	
   58%	
  
Concept	
  3:	
  Coordinate	
  Geometry	
   4	
   2.9	
   73%	
  
Concept	
  4:	
  Measurement	
   5	
   2.9	
   58%	
  
Strand	
  5:	
  Structure	
  and	
  Logic	
   9	
   5.1	
   57%	
  
Concepte	
  1/2:	
  Algorithms/Logic,	
  Reasonin,	
  Problem	
  Solving,	
  Proof	
   9	
   5.1	
   57%	
  


Total	
   68	
  
	
  


65%	
  
	
  


	
  
7th	
  Grade	
  Math	
  


Strands	
  /Concepts	
  
Number	
  
Possible	
   Average	
  


Percent	
  
Average	
  


Strand	
  1:	
  Number	
  and	
  Operations	
   17	
   10.8	
   64%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Number	
  Sense	
   5	
   3.0	
   60%	
  
Concept	
  2:	
  Numerical	
  Operations	
   8	
   4.9	
   61%	
  
Concept	
  3:	
  Estimation	
   4	
   2.9	
   73%	
  
Strand	
  2:	
  Data	
  Analysis,	
  Probability,	
  And	
  Discrete	
  Mathematics	
   13	
   8.8	
   68%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Data	
  Analysis	
   4	
   2.9	
   73%	
  
Concept	
  2:	
  	
  Probability	
   5	
   3.4	
   68%	
  
Concept	
  3/4:	
  Systematic	
  Listing	
  and	
  Countin/Vertex-­‐Edge	
  Graphs	
   4	
   2.5	
   63%	
  
Strand	
  3:	
  Patterns,	
  Algebra	
  and	
  Functions	
   13	
   9.0	
   69%	
  
Concept	
  1/2:	
  Patterns/	
  Functions	
  and	
  Relationships	
   4	
   3.0	
   75%	
  
Concept	
  3/4:	
  Alegebraic	
  Representations/Analysis	
  of	
  Change	
   9	
   6.0	
   67%	
  
Strand	
  4:	
  Geometry	
  and	
  Measurement	
   15	
   10.3	
   69%	
  
Concept	
  1/2:	
  Geometric	
  Properties/	
  Transformation	
  of	
  Shapes	
   9	
   6.3	
   70%	
  
Concept	
  4:	
  Measurement	
   6	
   4.0	
   67%	
  
Strand	
  5:	
  Structure	
  and	
  Logic	
   10	
   6.6	
   66%	
  
Concepte	
  1/2:	
  Algorithms/Logic,	
  Reasonin,	
  Problem	
  Solving,	
  Proof	
   10	
   6.6	
   66%	
  


Total	
   68	
  
	
  


67%	
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8th	
  Grade	
  Math	
  


Strands	
  /Concepts	
  
Number	
  
Possible	
   Average	
  


Percent	
  
Average	
  


Strand	
  1:	
  Number	
  and	
  Operations	
   12	
   8.7	
   73%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Number	
  Sense	
   4	
   2.7	
   68%	
  
Concept	
  2:	
  Numerical	
  Operations	
   4	
   3.0	
   75%	
  
Concept	
  3:	
  Estimation	
   4	
   3.0	
   75%	
  
Strand	
  2:	
  Data	
  Analysis,	
  Probability,	
  And	
  Discrete	
  Mathematics	
   12	
   8.2	
   68%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Data	
  Analysis	
   4	
   3.0	
   75%	
  
Concept	
  2:	
  	
  Probability	
   4	
   3.2	
   80%	
  
Concept	
  3/4:	
  Systematic	
  Listing	
  and	
  Countin/Vertex-­‐Edge	
  Graphs	
   4	
   2.0	
   50%	
  
Strand	
  3:	
  Patterns,	
  Algebra	
  and	
  Functions	
   18	
   12.7	
   71%	
  
Concept	
  1/2:	
  Patterns/	
  Functions	
  and	
  Relationships	
   6	
   4.8	
   80%	
  
Concept	
  3:	
  Alegebraic	
  Representations	
   8	
   6.2	
   78%	
  
Concept	
  4:	
  Analysis	
  of	
  Change	
   4	
   1.7	
   43%	
  
Strand	
  4:	
  Geometry	
  and	
  Measurement	
   16	
   10.5	
   66%	
  
Concept	
  1:	
  Geometric	
  Properties	
   4	
   2.5	
   63%	
  
Concept	
  2:	
  	
  Transformation	
  of	
  Shapes	
   4	
   2.8	
   70%	
  
Concept	
  3:	
  Coordinate	
  Geometry	
   4	
   2.7	
   68%	
  
Concept	
  4:	
  Measurement	
   4	
   2.5	
   63%	
  
Strand	
  5:	
  Structure	
  and	
  Logic	
   10	
   8.2	
   82%	
  
Concepte	
  1/2:	
  Algorithms/Logic,	
  Reasonin,	
  Problem	
  Solving,	
  Proof	
   10	
   8.2	
   82%	
  


Total	
   68	
  
	
  


72%	
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2012 
Traditional 


Elementary School (K-8) 


2013 
Traditional 


Elementary School (K-8) 


1. Growth Measure 
Points 


Assigned 
Weight Measure 


Points 
Assigned 


Weight 


1a. SGP 
Math 53.5 75 12.5 63 75 25 


Reading 47.5 50 12.5 70 100 25 


1b. SGP Bottom 25% 
Math 58.5 75 12.5 NR 0 0 


Reading 47.5 50 12.5 NR 0 0 


2. Proficiency Measure 
Points 


Assigned 
Weight Measure 


Points 
Assigned 


Weight 


2a. Percent Passing 
Math 60 / 64.2 50 7.5 71 / 63.3 75 7.5 


Reading 72 / 77.3 50 7.5 82 / 78.2 75 7.5 


2b. Composite School 
Comparison 


Math -3.3 50 7.5 6.3 75 7.5 


Reading -4.3 50 7.5 2.3 75 7.5 


2c. Subgroup ELL 
Math NR 0 0 NR 0 0 


Reading NR 0 0 NR 0 0 


2c. Subgroup FRL 
Math 65 / 54.6 75 3.75 88 / 54.2 100 7.5 


Reading 69 / 68.8 75 3.75 82 / 71.2 75 7.5 


2c. Subgroup SPED 
Math 46 / 26.6 75 3.75 NR 0 0 


Reading 62 / 37 75 3.75 NR 0 0 


3. State Accountability Measure 
Points 


Assigned 
Weight Measure 


Points 
Assigned 


Weight 


3a. State Accountability B 75 5 B 75 5 


Overall Rating Overall Rating 
 


Overall Rating 
 


Scoring for Overall Rating 
89 or higher: Exceeds Standard 
<89, but > or = to 63: Meets Standard 
<63, but > or = to 39: Does Not Meet Standard 
Less than 39: Falls Far Below Standard 


61.25 100 83.12 100 


 





















































ASBCS, September 8, 2014 
 


AGENDA ITEM: New School Site Notification Request – Hillcrest Academy, Inc.  
 
Issue 
A New School Site Notification Request was submitted by Hillcrest Academy, Inc. (HAI). The charter is authorized for 
grades K-8. HAI did not meet the Board’s academic performance expectations, and was required to submit a 
Demonstration of Sufficient Progress (DSP). 
 


Summary of Narrative Provided 
 


Rationale for Expansion Request 
HAI is in the process of merging entities with International Charter School of Arizona (ICSA), which is submitting a 
concurrent New School Site Notification Request. Hillcrest will locate a new site serving grades K-6 at the new site of 
ICSA on East Paradise Lane in north Phoenix, while ICSA is requesting to add a site serving grades 7-12 at the new 
location of Hillcrest Academy on South Power Road in Mesa. Both entities have aligned their corporate boards, missions, 
and programs of instruction. With the approval of the New School Site Notification Requests, HAI will request a decrease 
in approved grades from to K-6, and ICSA will request a decrease in approved grades from 5-12 to 7-12. 
  


Support Information 
The submitted minutes of the February 27, 2014 meeting of the corporate board of HAI show approval for the lease of a 
new facility on approval by ASBCS for an expansion site. 
 


Background 
HAI was granted a charter in 1997 under the name DCS Partners, Inc., and renewed on July 11, 2011. The name change 
to HAI was approved by the Board on July 8, 2013. HAI operates 1 school, Hillcrest Academy (formerly Destiny 
Community School from 1997 to 2013) serving grades K-8 in Mesa. According to the Charter Holder, 4% of students in FY 
2014 were in the ELL subgroup, 52% of students were in the FRL subgroup, and 3% of students were in the SPED 
subgroup.  
 
School Environment 
The following list shows the 2014 A-F Letter Grade for the five public schools serving grades in the K-8 range closest to 
the new site proposed for Hillcrest Academy on Paradise Lane in Phoenix: 
 


School Name District/Charter Grades Served FY2014 A-F Letter Grade 


Whispering Wind Academy District Charter K-6 A 


Arrowhead Elementary School District K-6 D 


Benchmark School Charter K-6 A 


Palomino Intermediate School District 4-6 B 


Palomino Primary School District K-3 B 


 
The current enrollment cap is 400. According to ADE, the 100th day ADM for FY 2014 was 76. The graph below shows the 
Charter Holder’s actual 100th day average daily membership (ADM) for fiscal years 2011-2014, and estimated enrollment 
for 2015.  







ASBCS, September 8, 2014 
 


 


Eligibility 


As stated in Board policy, prior to a request being considered by the Board, staff conducts a compliance check as part of 
the notification approval process. The Charter Holder is in compliance in all areas. 


Financial Performance 


HAI did not meet the Board’s financial performance expectations based on the fiscal year 2013 audit. The following table 
includes the charter holder’s financial data and financial performance for the last three audited fiscal years. Please note 
that due to a Classroom Site Fund cash carryover balance at June 30, 2012 of $9,764, the charter holder had $0 in 
unrestricted cash for fiscal year 2012. 
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The Charter Holder was required to submit a financial performance response based on the fiscal year 2013 audit 
(presented in the Charter Holder’s notification portfolio: f: Financial Performance Response). Staff’s evaluation of the 
financial performance response resulted in zero “Acceptable” and four “Not Acceptable” determinations (presented in 
the Charter Holder’s notification portfolio: g: Financial Performance Evaluation). 


Academic Performance 


As stated in the Board’s Academic Performance Framework and Guidance document, a Charter Holder’s academic 
performance will be evaluated by the Board when considering expansion requests. A dashboard representation of HAI’s 
academic outcomes, based upon the indicators and measures adopted by the Board, is provided below. 


2013 2012 2011


Statement of Financial Position 2010


Cash $27,177 $8,499 $0 $9,817


Unrestricted Cash $18,965 $0 $0


Other Liquidity $1,010,864


Total Assets $3,219,943 $3,149,500 $3,322,646


Total Liabilities $4,819,128 $4,043,546 $4,048,072


Current Portion of Long-Term Debt & 


Capital Leases $214,048 $80,167 $49,200


Net Assets ($1,599,185) ($894,046) ($725,426)


Statement of Activities


Revenue $641,931 $1,090,888 $903,092


Expenses $1,347,070 $1,259,506 $1,418,473


Net Income ($705,139) ($168,618) ($515,381)


Change in Net Assets ($705,139) ($168,618) ($515,381)


Financial Statements or Notes


Depreciation & Amortization Expense $153,274 $140,755 $137,390


Interest Expense $329,465 $313,972 $287,379


Lease Expense -                  -                  -                  


2013 2012 2011 3-yr Cumulative


Going Concern Yes Yes Yes N/A


Unrestricted Days Liquidity* 279.04 0.00 0.00 N/A


Default No No No N/A


Net Income ($705,139) ($168,618) ($515,381) N/A


Cash Flow $18,678 $8,499 ($9,817) $17,360


Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio (0.41) 0.73 (0.27) N/A


* For fiscal years 2011 and 2012, the field reflects the charter holder's performance under the financial


framework's previous "Unrestricted Days Cash" measure.


Financial Data


Financial Performance


Near-Term Indicators


Susta inabi l i ty Indicators


Hillcrest Academy, Inc.
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The FY 2013 overall rating for Hillcrest Academy on the Board’s academic performance measures was 83.12 including 
points received for the FY 2013  letter grade of B  as reported by the Arizona Department of Education. The FY 2012 
overall rating for Hillcrest Academy on the Board’s academic performance measures was 61.25 including points received 
for the FY 2012  letter grade of B  as reported by the Arizona Department of Education. 


The FY 2014 letter grade of Hillcrest Academy as reported by the Arizona Department of Education is B. 
 
The academic performance of HAI did not meet the Board’s academic performance expectations set forth in the 
performance framework adopted by the Board. A Demonstration of Sufficient Progress (DSP) was submitted by the 
charter representative (presented in the Charter Holder’s notification portfolio: e: DSP Submission).  


Demonstration of Sufficient Progress 


Following a preliminary evaluation of the DSP, staff conducted a site visit on August 22, 2014 to meet with the school’s 
leadership, as selected by the school, to confirm evidence of the processes described in the DSP and review additional 
evidence to be considered in the final evaluation (presented in the Charter Holder’s notification portfolio: c. DSP 
Evaluation Instrument and d. DSP Site Visit Inventory) of the Charter Holder’s DSP submission.  The following 
representatives of HAI were present at the site visit: 


Name Role 


Jerad Hunsaker Superintendent 


Dale Nichol High School Principal 


Mike Scott Curriculum 


Kris Johnson Grants 
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The DSP submitted by HAI for Hillcrest Academy was required to address the areas (curriculum, monitoring instruction, 
assessment, and professional development) for the measures for which the Charter Holder was required to provide a 
response. The Charter Holder was provided a copy of the initial evaluation prior to the site visit and informed that areas 
initially evaluated as not acceptable could be addressed with additional evidence at the time of the visit. The Charter 
Holder also had 48 hours following the site visit to submit relevant evidence. However, no evidence was submitted by 
the Charter Holder in the 48 hour period. 


After considering information in the DSP and evidence provided at the time of the site visit, the Charter Holder has not 
provided evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a curriculum that contributes to 
increased student growth and proficiency, implementation of a plan for monitoring the integration of the Arizona’s 
College and Career Ready Standards (ACCR Standards) into instruction, implementation of a plan for monitoring and 
documenting increases in student growth and proficiency, or  implementation of a professional development plan that 
contributed to increased student growth and proficiency.  


The Charter Holder did not provide data and analysis that demonstrates improved academic performance based on data 
generated from valid and reliable assessment sources. No disaggregated data or analysis of data was presented to 
demonstrate increased proficiency in Math and Reading for students in the ELL, FRL, or SPED subgroups, or increased 
growth for students with proficiency in the bottom 25%.  


Based on the findings summarized above and described below, staff determined that the Charter Holder did not 
demonstrate sufficient progress towards meeting the Board’s academic performance expectations. 


A description of the findings for each required area as evaluated is provided below: 


Curriculum: 


In the area of curriculum, HAI’s DSP was evaluated as Falls Far Below.  


The Charter Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a 
curriculum that contributes to increased student growth and proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence 
of disjointed efforts to develop or address school curriculum aligned with ACCR Standards. 


The Charter Holder’s demonstration of sufficient progress in the area of curriculum is not acceptable. 


 The Charter Holder must provide evidence of implementation of a systematic process the school uses to 
create/adopt curriculum.  Sufficient evidence will demonstrate how and when the school evaluates curriculum 
options, what findings the school makes about curriculum options, and who is involved in the curriculum 
adoption process. 


o The Charter Holder provided Beyond Textbooks evaluation material.  These documents identified 
materials used in the evaluation of an adopted curriculum, including samples of curricular documents 
(curricular calendar, sample lesson plan), a training agenda with an overview of the adopted curriculum, 
and documentation of attendance at a training regarding an adopted curriculum on July 7, 2014.  The 
Charter Holder also provided email documents regarding the Beyond Textbooks (BT) demo account, 
dated June 12 to June 14, 2014. These documents include reviews of the BT curriculum system by two 
teachers sent to site leaders. The Charter Holder also provided Beyond Textbooks. This document 
provides an overview of the BT curriculum framework, which was provided to parents to describe the 
features and benefits of the BT curriculum. The document identifies the reasons the BT curriculum was 
selected and how it will be used by teachers. The Charter Holder adopted this curriculum over the 
summer of 2014, but did not document the implementation of BT, as instruction for FY 2015 had not 
started by the time of the site visit.  These documents provide a limited demonstration of what findings 
the school makes about a particular curriculum option and who was involved in the adoption of that 
curriculum, but does not demonstrate how and when the school evaluates curriculum options. These 
documents provide evidence disjointed efforts the school uses to create/adopt curriculum, but do not 
provide evidence of implementation of a systematic process the school uses to create/adopt curriculum. 
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o The Charter Holder provided Principal Meeting 6/25. This document lists the reasons why BT was 
selected as the curriculum for the school for the 2014-2015 school year. The Charter Holder adopted 
this curriculum over the summer of 2014, but did not document the implementation of BT, as 
instruction for FY 2015 had not started by the time of the site visit. This document provide a limited 
demonstration of what findings the school makes about a particular curriculum option, but does not 
demonstrate how and when the school evaluates curriculum options. These documents provide 
evidence disjointed efforts the school uses to create/adopt curriculum, but do not provide evidence of 
implementation of a systematic process the school uses to create/adopt curriculum. 


o The Charter Holder provided New Curriculum Adoption Methods and Criteria. This document was 
prepared at the time of the site visit, and outlines the process used to adopt the BT curriculum for 
implementation during the 2014-2015 school year, including who was involved, criteria used, and why 
BT was chosen. The Charter Holder adopted this curriculum over the summer of 2014, but did not 
document the implementation of BT, as instruction for FY 2015 had not started by the time of the site 
visit. This document provide a limited demonstration of how and when the school has evaluated a 
particular curriculum option, what findings the school has made about that curriculum option, and who 
was involved in the curriculum adoption process for that curriculum, but does not demonstrate how and 
when the school evaluates curriculum options. These documents provide evidence disjointed efforts the 
school uses to create/adopt curriculum, but do not provide evidence of implementation of a systematic 
process the school uses to create/adopt curriculum. 


o The Charter Holder provided What Curriculum Materials Are High Performing Charter Schools Using? 
(Michigan Dept. of Ed.); Pearson Reading Street Longitudinal Efficacy Study (Gatti Evaluation Inc.); and 
What Works Clearinghouse evaluation of Saxon Math. The Michigan document identifies both Reading 
Street and Saxon Math as being used by high performing charter schools, while the Gatti document 
provided research results regarding the strengths and weaknesses of Pearson Reading Street. The What 
Works Clearinghouse document contains an evaluation consisting of a meta-analysis of the efficacy of 
Saxon Math. The charter holder stated that when the current leadership team took over, they used 
these documents to evaluate their curriculum offerings and identify the need for BT, but did not provide 
evidence of the process used to evaluate the curriculum and identify deficiencies, or evidence of the 
identified deficiencies. These documents provide a limited demonstration of how the school evaluates 
curriculum options, but do not demonstrate how and when the school evaluates curriculum options, 
what findings the school makes about curriculum options, and who is involved in the curriculum 
adoption process. These documents provide evidence disjointed efforts the school uses to create/adopt 
curriculum, but do not provide evidence of implementation of a systematic process the school uses to 
create/adopt curriculum. 


 The Charter Holder must provide evidence that the school has in place a system for implementing the 
curriculum consistently across the school.  Sufficient evidence will demonstrate the school utilizes tools that 
identify what must be taught, the expected pacing, strategies, methods, and activities, and communicated 
expectations for the consistent use of these tools.   


o The Charter Holder demonstrated the Beyond Textbooks (BT) website. This electronic document 
contains a calendar to identify standards to be taught, and the amount of time allocated to provide 
instruction for that standard. According to the Charter Holder, the website also provides instructional 
resources for each ACCR Standard. The Charter Holder demonstrated the availability of linked resources 
for four standards, one 5th grade Math standard, one 6th grade Reading standard, and two 8th grade 
Reading standards. For three of the four standards, the BT site contains the resources available for the 
teacher to use for instruction, but not for one of the 8th grade standards. The Charter Holder stated that 
fewer resources were available for the upper grades. The Charter Holder adopted this curriculum over 
the summer of 2014, but did not document the implementation of BT, as instruction for FY 2015 had not 
started by the time of the site visit. These documents demonstrate the school has adopted by not 
implemented tools that identify what must be taught and the expected pacing, but did not demonstrate 
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the school utilizes tools that consistently identify the expected strategies, methods, and activities, or 
that the school has communicated expectations for the consistent use of these tools. This document 
provides limited evidence that the school has in place processes for implementing the curriculum 
consistently across the school. 


o The Charter Holder provided Beyond Textbooks Non-Negotiables. This document describes the 
expectations for teacher use of BT curricular resources, including expectations for use of specific 
resources (calendars, essential standards, and unwrapped documents), and the expectation for planning 
one month in advance. The Charter Holder adopted this curriculum over the summer of 2014, but has 
not implemented BT yet, as instruction for FY 2015 had not started by the time of the site visit. The 
Charter Holder also provided Welcome Hillcrest Faculty presentation for the 2014-2015 school year. This 
document included the BT Non-Negotiables in the presentation. This document demonstrates the 
school has a process for communicating expectations for the consistent use of these tools, but not that 
the school  utilizes tools that identify what must be taught, the expected pacing, strategies, methods, 
and activities. This document provides limited evidence that the school has in place processes for 
implementing the curriculum consistently across the school. 


o The Charter Holder provided the 2013-2014 and 2014-2015 Teacher Handbooks. These documents 
include expectations regarding how teachers will use the curriculum map, and when and how teachers 
are to submit lesson plans. However, no lesson plans were provided for FY 2014 to provide evidence 
that the expectations had been implemented. The Charter Holder also provided Welcome Hillcrest 
Faculty presentation for the 2014-2015 school year. This document identifies the expectation for lesson 
planning, indicating the expectation for identifying standards in each lesson, and creation of lessons by 
Sunday for following week. These documents demonstrate the school has a process for communicating 
expectations for the consistent use of these tools, but not that the school utilizes tools that identify 
what must be taught, the expected pacing, strategies, methods, and activities. These documents provide 
limited evidence that the school has in place processes for implementing the curriculum consistently 
across the school. 


o The Charter Holder provided Saxon Math Table of Contents and Hake Fourth Grade Grammar and 
Writing Schedule. The Table of Contents and Grammar & Writing Schedule identify the instructional 
sequence of lessons for the particular grade. No similar pacing document was provided for Reading 
Street, which the charter holder identified as their primary Reading curriculum. These documents 
provide limited demonstration that the school utilizes tools that identify what must be taught and the 
expected pacing, but do not demonstrate that the school utilizes tools that identify strategies, methods, 
and activities, or communicated expectations for the consistent use of these tools. These documents 
provide limited evidence that the school has in place processes for implementing the curriculum 
consistently across the school. 


o The Charter Holder described, but did not provide evidence of a pacing guide and curriculum map for 
ELA in grades 5-8. This does not provide evidence that the school has in place a system for implementing 
the curriculum consistently across the school. 


o The Charter Holder described, but did not provide evidence of a Pacing Guides for Reading Street, which 
was described as the primary reading curriculum. This does not provide evidence that the school has in 
place a system for implementing the curriculum consistently across the school. 


o The Charter Holder described, but did not provide evidence of a pacing guide for Saxon Math for 3rd 
grade. This does not provide evidence that the school has in place a system for implementing the 
curriculum consistently across the school. 


o The Charter Holder described, but did not provide evidence of a Hake Grammar and Writing schedule 
for 6th grade. This does not provide evidence that the school has in place a system for implementing the 
curriculum consistently across the school. 
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o The Charter Holder described, but did not provide evidence of a two consecutive weeks of lesson plans 
aligned to the provided and requested pacing guides. This does not provide evidence that the school has 
in place a system for implementing the curriculum consistently across the school. 


 The Charter Holder must provide evidence of implementation of a systematic process for evaluating and revising 
curriculum.  Sufficient evidence will demonstrate how the school evaluates how effectively the curriculum 
enables students to master the standards, identifies gaps in the curriculum, and demonstrates how the school is 
addressing curricular gaps.  


o The Charter Holder provided What Curriculum Materials Are High Performing Charter Schools Using? 
(Michigan Dept. of Ed.); Pearson Reading Street Longitudinal Efficacy Study (Gatti Evaluation Inc.); and 
What Works Clearinghouse evaluation of Saxon Math. The Michigan document identifies both Reading 
Street and Saxon Math as being used by high performing charter schools, while the Gatti document 
provided research results regarding the strengths and weaknesses of Pearson Reading Street. The What 
Works Clearinghouse document contains an evaluation consisting of a meta-analysis of the efficacy of 
Saxon Math. The charter holder stated that when the current leadership team took over, they used 
these documents to evaluate their curriculum offerings and determine that based on the prior 
performance of the school and the findings of these reports, they would continue using Reading Street 
ELA and Saxon Math. These documents provide limited demonstration of how the school evaluates how 
effectively the curriculum enables students to master the standards, but do not demonstrate how the 
school identifies gaps in the curriculum, or how the school is addressing curricular gaps. These 
documents provide evidence disjointed efforts the school uses to evaluate and revise curriculum, but do 
not provide evidence of implementation of a systematic process the school uses for evaluating and 
revising curriculum. 


 The Charter Holder must demonstrate implementation of a curriculum aligned to the ACCR standards.  


o The Charter Holder provided Saxon Math Content by Strand for grades K and 2, Saxon Math Table of 
Contents, Hake Grammar and Writing 4, Hake Fourth Grade Grammar and Writing Schedule, and 
Reading Street Alignment. The Table of Contents and Grammar & Writing Schedule identify the 
instructional sequence of lessons. The Saxon Math Content by Strand document identifies lesson 
numbers aligned to Common Core State Standards for the particular grades. The Hake Grammar and 
Writing 4 document aligns lessons to Common Core State Writing and Language Standards for the 
particular grade. The Reading Street Alignment document is organized by standard to document that all 
standards are addressed by Reading Street resources during the school year. These documents 
demonstrate the implementation of a curriculum aligned to the ACCR standards. 


o The Charter Holder demonstrated the Beyond Textbooks website. This electronic document contains a 
calendar to identify ACCR Standards to be taught, with links to unpacked standards phrased as student-
friendly learning objectives. The Charter Holder adopted this curriculum over the summer of 2014, but 
did not document the implementation of BT, as instruction for FY 2015 had not started by the time of 
the site visit. This document provides evidence of the adoption, but not the implementation, of a 
curriculum aligned to the ACCR standards. 


 The Charter Holder must demonstrate implementation of a curriculum adapted to meet the needs of subgroup 
populations.  Sufficient evidence will demonstrate there is curriculum intended to provide differentiated 
materials, activities, and/or strategies for struggling students within the subgroups. 


o The Charter Holder demonstrated the Beyond Textbooks website. This electronic document contains a 
calendar to identify standards to be taught, with links to website areas where teachers can upload 
differentiated instructional activities aligned to each standard. According to the Charter Holder, the 
website also provides intervention and accommodation resources for each ACCR Standard. The Charter 
Holder demonstrated the availability of linked resources for four standards, one 5th grade Math 
standard, one 6th grade Reading standard, and two 8th grade Reading standards. For the 5th and 6th 
grade standards, the BT site contains the resources available for the teacher to use for differentiation, 
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but not for the 8th grade standards. According to the Charter Holder, the ELP standards have not been 
integrated into BT for ELL students. The Charter Holder adopted this curriculum over the summer of 
2014, but did not document the implementation of BT, as instruction for FY 2015 had not started by the 
time of the site visit. These documents demonstrate the school has adopted, but not implemented, a 
curriculum adapted to meet the needs of subgroup populations.  This document does not demonstrate 
there is curriculum intended to provide differentiated materials, activities, and/or strategies for 
struggling students within the subgroups.  


o The Charter Holder described, but did not provide evidence of, a tutoring program to meet the needs of 
students with proficiency in the bottom 25%. This does not demonstrate implementation of a 
curriculum adapted to meet the needs of subgroup populations. 


Monitoring Instruction:  


In the area of monitoring instruction, HAI’s DSP was evaluated as Falls Far Below.  


The Charter Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a plan 
for monitoring the integration of the ACCR Standards into instruction.   Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of 
the beginning stages of monitoring and evaluating standards and instructional practices. 


The Charter Holder’s demonstration of sufficient progress in the area of monitoring instruction is not acceptable. 


 The Charter Holder must provide evidence of implementation of a system to monitor the integration of ACCR 
Standards into instruction. Sufficient evidence will demonstrate that the school ensures all grade level 
standards are taught within the school year in all classrooms and that teachers implement an ACCR Standards-
aligned curriculum with fidelity. 


o The Charter Holder provided Lesson Plans Spring 2014. This document is a checklist used by the 
Curriculum Director to indicate that lesson plans for the following week were received by the Friday 
due date indicated in the 2013-2014 Teacher Handbook described above. This document indicates 
that of the 19 weeks tracked by the checklist, lesson plans were received timely from all teachers on 
two weeks. The document does not indicate whether lesson plans were received late, and the 
Curriculum Director stated that he did not document follow up. The Charter Holder described, but 
did not provide evidence of, lesson plans from the period covered on this document. This document 
provides limited demonstration that teachers implement an ACCR Standards-aligned curriculum 
with fidelity. These documents provide evidence of the beginning stages of monitoring and 
evaluating standards and instructional practices. . These documents provide evidence of the 
beginning stages of monitoring and evaluating standards and instructional practices. 


o The Charter Holder provided Lesson Plans for the week of August 5, 2013 for ELA grades 5-8 and 4th 
grade, and for the week of April 14-18, 2014 for 4th grade. The lesson plans for ELA grades 5-8 
indicate grade-level appropriate ACCR Standards for all classes except Language & Literature 7th, 
which lists a 6th grade standard one day and no standards the other four days. The August and April 
4th grade lesson plans both list grade-appropriate ACCR Standards for ELA and Math for each day. 
These documents provide limited evidence that teachers implement an ACCR Standards-aligned 
curriculum with fidelity, but when requested, the Charter Holder did not provide lesson plans 
demonstrating alignment to the provided and requested pacing guides, or other lesson plans from 
the period documented on the  Lesson Plan Spring 2014 document described above. These 
documents provide evidence of the beginning stages of monitoring and evaluating standards and 
instructional practices. 


o The Charter Holder provided 5 Minute Observation: 9 samples from December 2013. These 
documents record five minute observations completed by teachers and school leadership. Each 
teacher completed an observation of every teacher. The documents record what lesson was being 
taught, where the teacher was standing, evidence of student work, expectations of behavior posted, 
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evidence of objective and learning goals, number of students on task, the classroom climate, and 
other notes. In three of the nine records, the “Evidence of Objectives/Subject/Learning Goals” notes 
indicate that a schedule or homework was posted, four records indicate “yes,” in one case students 
were testing, and in one case there is no entry, but none of the documents provided indicate that 
instruction was aligned to an ACCR Standard. These documents do not demonstrate that the school 
ensures all grade level standards are taught within the school year in all classrooms or that teachers 
implement an ACCR Standards-aligned curriculum with fidelity. These documents provide evidence 
of the beginning stages of monitoring and evaluating standards and instructional practices. 


o The Charter Holder demonstrated the Beyond Textbooks website. This electronic document 
contains a calendar to identify ACCR Standards to be taught on specific days, and the expected 
pacing for instruction related to each standard. The Charter Holder adopted this curriculum over the 
summer of 2014, but did not document the implementation of BT, as instruction for FY 2015 had not 
started by the time of the site visit. These documents demonstrate the school has adopted, but not 
implemented, a process that the school ensures all grade level standards are taught within the 
school year in all classrooms. However, the Charter Holder did not provide evidence of the 
implementation of a process that the school ensures all grade level standards are taught within the 
school year in all classrooms. These documents provide evidence of the beginning stages of 
monitoring and evaluating standards and instructional practices. 


 The Charter Holder must provide evidence of implementation of a system to evaluate the instructional 
practices of teachers. Sufficient evidence will demonstrate that the school evaluates the quality of 
instruction and identifies the strengths, weaknesses, and learning needs of teachers. 


o The Charter Holder provided 5 Minute Observation: 9 examples from December 2013. These 
documents record five minute observations completed by teachers and school leadership. Each 
teacher completed an observation of every teacher. The documents record what lesson was being 
taught, where the teacher was standing, evidence of student work, expectations of behavior posted, 
evidence of objective and learning goals, number of students on task, the classroom climate, and 
other notes. Three examples included comments that identified instructional weaknesses. The site 
leader stated that feedback was verbal only, and no documentation of feedback was provided. 
When requested, the Charter Holder did not provide evidence of an evaluation of instructional 
practice which identifies a learning need. These documents provide limited demonstration that the 
school evaluates the quality of instruction and identifies the strengths, weaknesses, and learning 
needs of teachers. These documents provide evidence of the beginning stages of monitoring and 
evaluating standards and instructional practices. 


o The Charter Holder provided Formal Teacher Evaluations Instructional Development Scale from 
December, 2013 for three teachers. These documents provide 4 page evaluation of teachers in the 
areas of Designs and Plans Instruction, Creates and Maintains a Learning Climate, and Implements 
and Manages Instruction and Assessment. Within each category teachers are rated on a scale of 1 to 
5. Evaluation documents use a rating scale to identify skills that need improvement, with scores of 1 
or 2 indicating a learning need. One of the three teachers had an area (Uses effective closure or 
summarization technique) scored below 3, while the other two were rated 3 or above in all scored 
areas. The forms also included hand-written notes by the evaluator. The site leader stated that 
feedback was verbal only, and no documentation of feedback was provided. These documents 
provide limited demonstration that the school evaluates the quality of instruction and identifies the 
strengths, weaknesses, and learning needs of teachers. When requested, the Charter Holder did not 
provide evidence of a teacher evaluation which identified a teacher learning need, provided 
feedback, and demonstrated the teachers have access to resources to address identified 
weaknesses and learning needs. These documents provide evidence of the beginning stages of 
monitoring and evaluating standards and instructional practices. 
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 The Charter Holder must provide evidence that school leaders conduct some analysis and provide some 
feedback to further develop the system. Sufficient evidence will demonstrate that teachers receive the 
feedback, have access to the resources necessary to address identified weaknesses and learning needs, 
and/or the school ensures teacher development is ongoing. 


o The Charter Holder provided 5 Minute Observation: 9 examples from December 2013. These 
documents record five minute observations completed by teachers and school leadership. Each 
teacher completed an observation of every teacher. The documents record what lesson was being 
taught, where the teacher was standing, evidence of student work, expectations of behavior posted, 
evidence of objective and learning goals, number of students on task, the classroom climate, and 
other notes. Three examples included comments that identified instructional weaknesses. The site 
leader stated that feedback was verbal only, and no documentation of feedback was provided. 
These documents did not provide evidence that demonstrate teachers receive the feedback, or have 
access to the resources necessary to address identified weaknesses and learning needs. When 
requested, the Charter Holder did not provide evidence of an instructional observation which 
identified a teacher learning need, provided feedback, and demonstrated the teachers have access 
to resources to address identified weaknesses and learning needs. These documents provide 
evidence of the beginning stages of monitoring and evaluating standards and instructional practices. 


o The Charter Holder provided Formal Teacher Evaluations Instructional Development Scale from 
December, 2013 for three teachers. These documents provide 4 page evaluation of teachers in the 
areas of Designs and Plans Instruction, Creates and Maintains a Learning Climate, and Implements 
and Manages Instruction and Assessment. Within each category teachers are rated on a scale of 1 to 
5. Evaluation documents use a rating scale to identify skills that need improvement, with scores of 1 
or 2 indicating a learning need. One of the three teachers had an area (Uses effective closure or 
summarization technique) scored below 3, while the other two were rated 3 or above in all scored 
areas. The forms also included hand-written notes by the evaluator. The site leader stated that 
feedback was verbal only, and no documentation of feedback was provided. These documents did 
not demonstrate that teachers receive the feedback, have access to the resources necessary to 
address identified weaknesses and learning needs, or the school ensures teacher development is 
ongoing. These documents provide evidence of the beginning stages of monitoring and evaluating 
standards and instructional practices. 


 The Charter Holder must provide evidence of implementation of a system to evaluate the instructional 
practices of teachers that addresses the needs of students with proficiency in the bottom 25%, ELL students, 
FRL students, and students with disabilities. Sufficient evidence will demonstrate that the school evaluates 
the quality of instruction and identifies the strengths, weaknesses, and learning needs of teachers in relation 
to meeting the needs of students with proficiency in the bottom 25%, ELL students, FRL students, and 
students with disabilities. 


o No documentation was provided by the Charter Holder to demonstrate evidence of implementation 
of a system to evaluate the instructional practices of teachers that address the needs of students in 
subgroups. 


Assessment: 


In the area of assessment, HAI’s demonstration of sufficient progress was evaluated as Approaches.  


The Charter Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a plan 
for monitoring and documenting student proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of an assessment 
approach that is not comprehensive nor aligned with the curriculum and instructional practices. The evidence 
demonstrated that little data is collected and data is not used to make instructional decisions. 


The Charter Holder’s DSP in the area of assessment is not acceptable. 
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 The Charter Holder must provide evidence of the implementation of a comprehensive assessment system.  
Sufficient evidence will demonstrate the school regularly and timely assesses students in a manner that is 
aligned with the curriculum in order to monitor student progress. 


o The Charter Holder provided Grade book pages: 7th Grade Math Q1, 4th Grade ELA February.  These 
documents identify curriculum based test scores identified for 7th grade Math and 4th grade formative 
assessments for grade level reading selections.  These documents provide a limited demonstration the 
school regularly assesses students in a manner that is aligned with the curriculum, but not that the 
school assesses in order to monitor student progress. These documents provide evidence of an 
assessment approach that is not comprehensive nor aligned with the curriculum and instructional 
practices. 


o The Charter Holder provided Galileo assessment reports. The Instruction Performance Tracker Report 
for grade 3 Math does not identify ACCR Standards, but identifies specific archived standards for 
teachers to focus on to reduce the risk level of students in the class. The Individual Development Profile 
Report provides the results of a teacher-created curricular quiz which does not assess an ACCR Standard, 
but addresses a specific archived standard in Reading for 6th grade. The Intervention Alert for 4th grade 
Math indicates performance for each student on each tested archived standard rather than ACCR 
Standards, and provides the number of archived standards met for each student and percent met for 
each performance objective. The Student Assessment History Report shows, for a particular 7th grade 
student, the results of each benchmark assessment taken for the 2013-2014 school year, including 
developmental level score, whether that score exceeds, meets, approaches, or falls far below standard, 
and the risk level, as well as the results on teacher-created curricular assessments. These documents all 
indicate that the assessments are aligned to archived standards in Math and Reading, rather than the 
ACCR Standards which the curriculum is aligned to. These documents demonstrate the school regularly 
and timely assesses students in order to monitor student progress, but not that the school assesses 
students in a manner that is aligned with the curriculum. These documents provide evidence of an 
assessment approach that is not comprehensive nor aligned with the curriculum and instructional 
practices. 


o The Charter Holder provided ACSA Quality Schools Assessment Worksheet. This document was used by 
the Curriculum Director to monitor teacher administration of Galileo pre-test and benchmark 
assessments after teachers were trained to assign Galileo assessments to students, and indicates that all 
teachers gave the Galileo pretest and Reading Benchmark 1, 5 of 9 gave Math Benchmark 1, and do not 
include any notations for later assessments. The Curriculum Director stated that after Benchmark 1, he 
realized that the Worksheet was redundant to information provided by the Galileo system. These 
documents provide limited demonstration that the school regularly and timely assesses students in 
order to monitor student progress, but not that the school assesses students in a manner that is aligned 
with the curriculum. These documents provide evidence of an assessment approach that is not 
comprehensive nor aligned with the curriculum and instructional practices.  


 The Charter Holder must provide evidence that data from these assessments is analyzed and utilized. Sufficient 
evidence will demonstrate how and when the school analyzes assessment data, what findings the school makes 
from assessment data, who is involved in the analysis of assessment data, and how that analysis is used to 
inform and adapt instruction.  


o The Charter Holder provided Galileo assessment reports. The Instruction Performance Tracker Report 
for grade 3 Math identifies specific archived standards rather than ACCR Standards for teachers to focus 
on to reduce the risk level of students in the class. The Individual Development Profile Report provides 
the results of a teacher-created curricular quiz addressing a specific archive standards rather than ACCR 
Standards in Reading for 6th grade. The Intervention Alert for 4th grade Math indicates performance for 
each student on each tested archived standard, and provides the number of archived standards met for 
each student and percent met for each archived standard. The Student Assessment History Report 
shows, for a particular 7th grade student, the results of each benchmark assessment taken for the 2013-
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2014 school year, including developmental level score, whether that score exceeds, meets, approaches, 
or falls far below standard, and the risk level, as well as the results on teacher-created curricular 
assessments. These documents provide limited demonstration of how and when the school analyzes 
assessment data, but do not demonstrate what findings the school makes from assessment data, who is 
involved in the analysis of assessment data, and how that analysis is used to inform and adapt 
instruction. These documents provide evidence of an assessment approach that is not comprehensive 
nor aligned with the curriculum and instructional practices. 


o The Charter Holder provided Galileo Student Growth and Achievement Reports. These documents 
indicate student performance on the benchmark posttest graphically, with individual student proficiency 
plotted against a proficiency cut score, and student growth from the pretest plotted against an expected 
growth score for the grade. Reports were provided for Reading and for Math for all grades K-8. These 
documents provide limited demonstration of how and when the school analyzes assessment data, but 
do not demonstrate what findings the school makes from assessment data, who is involved in the 
analysis of assessment data, and how that analysis is used to inform and adapt instruction. These 
documents provide evidence of an assessment approach that is not comprehensive nor aligned with the 
curriculum and instructional practices. 


o The Charter Holder provided Data Training, December 11, 2013. These documents include the meeting 
agenda and 2013 AIMS data used at the training. The data analysis provided includes a summary of 
findings from analysis of 2013 AIMS data by grade level, content area, and the instructional analysis tool 
used to conduct the analysis, with specific strands of the archived Performance Objectives highlighted to 
indicate deficiencies. Data also indicates an analysis of growth scores for students with Student Growth 
Percentiles listed in AIMS data, including whether the student was included in the Bottom 25% 
subgroup. These documents provide limited demonstration of how and when the school analyzes 
assessment data and what findings the school makes from assessment data, but do not demonstrate 
who is involved in the analysis of assessment data or how that analysis is used to inform and adapt 
instruction. These documents provide evidence of an assessment approach that is not comprehensive 
nor aligned with the curriculum and instructional practices. 


 The Charter Holder must provide evidence of implementation of an assessment system that meets the needs of 
students with proficiency in the bottom 25%, ELL students, FRL students, and students with disabilities. 
Sufficient evidence will demonstrate how the assessment system assesses students within the subgroups 
according to their needs. 


o No documentation was provided by the Charter Holder to demonstrate evidence of implementation of 
an assessment system that meets the needs of students in subgroups. This provides evidence of an 
assessment approach that is not comprehensive nor aligned with the curriculum and instructional 
practices. 


Professional Development: 


In the area of professional development, HAI’s DSP was evaluated as Falls Far Below.  


The Charter Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a 
professional development plan that contributed to increased student growth and proficiency. Rather, the Charter 
Holder’s evidence demonstrated that the Charter Holder is at the beginning stages of developing a professional 
development plan based on identified teacher learning needs. Professional development is usually external and 
determined without regard to an overall school plan. 


The Charter Holder’s DSP in the area of professional development is not acceptable. 


 The Charter Holder must provide evidence of implementation of a comprehensive professional development 
plan.  Sufficient evidence will demonstrate that the plan was developed to address teacher learning needs and 
areas of high importance. 
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o The Charter Holder provided Hillcrest Academy Professional Development Needs. This undated 
document presents a narrative describing professional development needs. According to the site leader, 
this document was the narrative piece of a PD plan attached to a PD calendar, which was requested but 
not provided. The document indicates that areas of high need include training on newly adopted ACCR 
Standard-aligned curriculums, implementation of the Common Core-based standards, and 
implementation of the Galileo assessment system, and that these areas were determined by the 
governing board and administration, but does not describe or provide evidence regarding the process 
used by to develop these. The document states that at the beginning of the year several new 
curriculums were adopted, but no evidence of those adoptions was provided. The document states that 
mid-year follow-up trainings will be implemented to assess how effectively the new curriculums are 
being utilized, but no documentation of these trainings was provided. The document states that a 
survey of staff would be implemented to identify additional deficiencies, but no evidence of this survey 
was provided. The document also states that the PD needs of individual faculty are determined through 
the review of lesson plans, walk-through observations, and formal evaluations, but no evidence of this 
process was provided. This document provides a limited demonstration that the plan was developed to 
address areas of high importance, but do not provide evidence that the plan was developed to address 
teacher learning needs. This document provides evidence that the Charter Holder is at the beginning 
stages of developing a professional development plan based on identified teacher learning needs. 


o The Charter Holder provided Data Training, December 11, 2013. These documents include the meeting 
agenda and 2013 AIMS data used at the training, but no other meeting materials. When requested, the 
Charter Holder did not provide sign-in sheets. The data analysis provided includes a summary of findings 
from analysis of 2013 AIMS data by grade level, content area, and the instructional analysis tool used to 
conduct the analysis, with specific strands of the archived Performance Objectives highlighted to 
indicate deficiencies. Data also indicates an analysis of growth scores for students with Student Growth 
Percentiles listed in AIMS data, including whether the student was included in the Bottom 25% 
subgroup. These documents provide limited demonstration that the plan was developed to address 
areas of high importance, but do not provide evidence that the plan was developed to address teacher 
learning needs. These documents provide evidence of that the Charter Holder is at the beginning stages 
of developing a professional development plan based on identified teacher learning needs. 


o The Charter Holder provided Galileo system instructions and guides. When requested, the Charter 
Holder did not provide sign-in sheets. These documents were provided to teachers to support the use of 
Galileo for creating and administering assessments. The Charter Holder also provided ACSA Quality 
Schools Assessment Worksheet. This document was used by the Curriculum Director to monitor teacher 
administration of Galileo pre-test and benchmark assessments after teachers were trained to assign 
Galileo assessments to students. These documents provide limited demonstration that the plan was 
developed to address areas of high importance, but do not provide evidence that the plan was 
developed to address teacher learning needs. These documents provide evidence that the Charter 
Holder is at the beginning stages of developing a professional development plan based on identified 
teacher learning needs. 


o The Charter Holder provided AZ Common Core Standards training materials. These documents include 
presentation slides for an external training on AZ Common Core Standards, which provides an overview 
of essential components of ACCR Standards. The documents also include an undated Certificate of 
Completion for the Curriculum Director. No agenda or sign-in sheets were provided. The Curriculum 
Director stated that he attended the external training and brought the materials back to the school, 
where he provided it to the teachers, but did not provide evidence of this school-level training. These 
documents do not demonstrate that the plan was developed to address areas of high importance or 
developed to address teacher learning needs. These documents provide evidence that the Charter 
Holder is at the beginning stages of developing a professional development plan based on identified 
teacher learning needs. 







ASBCS, September 8, 2014 
 


 The Charter Holder must provide evidence of implementation of a system that supports high quality 
implementation of the information and strategies learned through the professional development plan.  
Sufficient evidence will demonstrate how the Charter Holder provides access to resources necessary to 
implement the information and strategies, and/or otherwise supports teachers in planning to implement the 
information and strategies. 


o The Charter Holder provided the article “What is a ‘Professional Learning Community?’” by Richard 
DuFour.  This document describes the process for implementing PLC at the school; the document was 
provided to teachers to guide implementation of PLC at the school site. Agendas for PLC meetings were 
provided to demonstrate implementation of PLC meetings. However, no sign-in sheets or meeting 
materials were provided to evidence implementation of PLCs. These documents provide limited 
demonstration of how the Charter Holder provides access to resources necessary to implement the 
information and strategies, and otherwise supports teachers in planning to implement the information 
and strategies. These documents provide evidence of that the Charter Holder is at the beginning stages 
of developing a professional development plan based on identified teacher learning needs. 


o The Charter Holder provided Galileo system instructions and guides. These documents were provided to 
teachers to support the use of Galileo for creating and administering assessments. The Charter Holder 
also provided ACSA Quality Schools Assessment Worksheet. This document was used by the Curriculum 
Director to monitor teacher administration of Galileo pre-test and benchmark assessments after 
teachers were trained to assign Galileo assessments to students, and indicates that all teachers gave the 
Galileo pretest and Reading Benchmark 1, 5 of 9 gave Math Benchmark 1, and do not include any 
notations for later assessments. The Curriculum Director stated that after Benchmark 1, he realized that 
the Worksheet was redundant to information provided by the Galileo system. The Charter Holder also 
provided Individual Development Profile Report. This document provides the results of a teacher-
created curricular quiz addressing a specific archived Performance Objective in Reading for 6th grade, 
but do not provide evidence that the Galileo system was used to create curricular assessments by other 
teachers. These documents provide limited demonstration of how the Charter Holder provides access to 
resources necessary to implement the information and strategies, and otherwise supports teachers in 
planning to implement the information and strategies. These documents provide evidence that the 
Charter Holder is at the beginning stages of developing a professional development plan based on 
identified teacher learning needs. 


o The Charter Holder provided AZ Common Core Standards training materials. These documents include 
presentation slides for an external training on AZ Common Core Standards, which provides an overview 
of essential components of ACCR Standards. The documents also include an undated Certificate of 
Completion for the Curriculum Director. No agenda or sign-in sheets were provided. The Curriculum 
Director stated that he attended the external training and brought the materials back to the school, 
where he provided it to the teachers, but did not provide evidence of this school-level training. These 
documents provide limited demonstration of how the Charter Holder provides access to resources 
necessary to implement the information and strategies, and otherwise supports teachers in planning to 
implement the information and strategies. These documents provide evidence of that the Charter 
Holder is at the beginning stages of developing a professional development plan based on identified 
teacher learning needs. 


 The Charter Holder must provide evidence of implementation of a system to follow-up on and monitor the 
implementation of the strategies and information learned through the professional development plan.  
Sufficient evidence will demonstrate how implementation is observed and evaluated and how the school 
ensures teacher development is ongoing in relation to the information and strategies learned through the 
professional development plan. 


o No documentation was provided by the Charter Holder to demonstrate evidence of implementation of a 
system to follow-up on and monitor the implementation of the strategies and information learned 
through the professional development plan. 







ASBCS, September 8, 2014 
 


 The Charter Holder must provide evidence of implementation of a comprehensive professional development 
plan that meets the needs of students with proficiency in the bottom 25%, ELL students, FRL students, and 
students with disabilities. Sufficient evidence will demonstrate how the professional development plan 
addresses teacher weaknesses and learning needs and areas of high importance in relation to students within 
the subgroups according to their needs. 


o The Charter Holder provided Special Education Start-up In-service Training: 2013-2014 School Year. This 
document provides an undated agenda and materials from a PD session regarding the SPED student 
subgroup. When requested, the Charter Holder did not provide sign-in sheets. The document includes 
information for teachers about making modifications and accommodations to curriculum and 
instruction. This document included a pre/post-test that was completed during the training, and 
expectations that the general education teachers must meet the needs of students in the SPED 
subgroup who are in their classes. This document provided demonstration of how the professional 
development plan addresses areas of high importance in relation to students within the subgroups 
according to their needs, but not teacher learning needs regarding students in subgroups. These 
documents provide evidence of that the Charter Holder is at the beginning stages of developing a 
professional development plan based on identified teacher learning needs. 


o The Charter Holder provided Data Training, December 11, 2013. These documents include the meeting 
agenda and 2013 AIMS data used at the training, which identifies students in the Bottom 25% subgroup. 
When requested, the Charter Holder did not provide sign-in sheets. The agenda also identifies 
SST/Inclusion strategies as part of training, but no documentation was provided to support the 
presentation of materials addressing subgroups needs. These documents provide limited demonstration 
of how the professional development plan addresses areas of high importance in relation to students 
within the subgroups according to their needs, but not teacher learning needs regarding students in 
subgroups. These documents provide evidence that the Charter Holder is at the beginning stages of 
developing a professional development plan based on identified teacher learning needs. 


Data: 


The Charter Holder did not provide data and analysis that demonstrates improved academic performance based on data 
generated from valid and reliable assessment sources.  


The Charter Holder’s demonstration of sufficient progress in the area of data is not acceptable. 


HAI did not demonstrate improved academic performance based on data generated from valid and reliable assessment 
sources. 


 The Charter Holder must provide evidence of the effectiveness of their systems in each of the areas discussed 
above through the presentation of valid and reliable data and data analysis that demonstrates improved student 
growth and proficiency.  Sufficient evidence will demonstrate a correlation between the school’s performance 
on the AIMS assessment, as reflected in the dashboard, and benchmark assessments that demonstrates 
improvement compared to prior years. 


o The Charter Holder provided Galileo Student Growth and Achievement Reports. These documents, 
provided for Math and Reading for grades K-8, provide a graphical representation of each tested 
student’s proficiency as compared to a proficiency cut score, and growth from the pretest to the 
posttest as compared to an expected growth measure, both set by Galileo. The results show that 77% of 
students met the proficiency cut score in Reading, and 56% met in Math. For growth, 55% of students 
made expected growth in Reading, and 42% made expected growth in Math. These documents only 
address FY 2014 internal benchmark data, and do not demonstrate a correlation between the school’s 
performance on the AIMS assessment, as reflected in the dashboard, and benchmark assessments that 
demonstrates improvement compared to prior years. These documents do not provide evidence of the 
effectiveness of their systems in each of the areas discussed above through the presentation of valid 
and reliable data and data analysis that demonstrates improved student growth and proficiency. 







ASBCS, September 8, 2014 
 


Board Options 


Option 1: Having considered the statements of the representatives of the Charter Holder today and the contents of the 
expansion portfolio which includes the Demonstration of Sufficient Progress, I move to deny the New Site Notification 
Request to the charter of Hillcrest Academy, Inc. on the bases that the Charter Holder failed to meet or make sufficient 
progress toward the academic performance expectations set forth in the performance framework as reflected in the 
staff report. 


Option 2:  Notwithstanding staff’s recommendation to deny the request, the Board may determine that there is a basis 
to approve the New Site Notification Request to the charter held by Hillcrest Academy, Inc. as requested by the Charter 
Holder.  The following language is provided for consideration: Charter expansion is based on consideration of academic 
and contractual compliance of the Charter Holder. In this case, the Charter Holder did not meet the academic 
performance expectations set forth in the Board’s performance framework but was able to demonstrate sufficient 
progress toward the Board’s expectations when: [provide specific findings related to curriculum, monitoring of 
instruction, assessment, professional development, and/or data]. With that taken into consideration, as well as having 
considered the statements of the representatives of the Charter Holder today and the contents of the expansion 
portfolio which includes the Demonstration of Sufficient Progress, I move that the Board approve the New Site 
Notification Request to the charter of Hillcrest Academy, Inc. 
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Demonstration of Sufficient Progress Evaluation Instrument 


Charter Holder Name: Hillcrest Academy, Inc. Required for: Expansion Request – New Site 
School Name: Hillcrest Academy Initial Evaluation Completed: August 15, 2014 
Date Submitted: August 13, 2014 Final Evaluation Completed: September 3, 2014 
Academic Dashboard: FY 2013 
 


I = Result after initial evaluation 
S = Result after evaluation of information collected from the site visit  
 


  Initial Evaluation Final Evaluation 


Measure Acceptable 
Not 


Acceptable 
Comments Comments 


1a. Student 
Median Growth 
Percentile (SGP) 
Reading 


 I/S 


Curriculum: This area is initially scored as Approaches. The narrative describes 
processes to evaluate and revise curriculum, including supplemental curriculum, 
evidenced by pacing guides and data review teams. The narrative provided describes 
processes that, even if supported by evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school has 
implemented a curriculum to increase student growth in Reading on  Arizona’s College 
and Career Ready Standards (ACCR Standards) because the narrative does not describe 
a system that includes processes to create and implement curriculum which would have 
provided evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a 
curriculum that contributes to increased student growth. Rather, the Charter Holder 
provided evidence of a fragmented approach that the school uses to create and 
implement  school curriculum, aligned with ACCR Standards. The approach lacks 
cohesiveness or alignment with other school improvement efforts. 


Instruction: This area is initially scored as Falls Far Below. The narrative describes 
processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the teachers evidenced by lesson 
plan reviews, formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom observations, and data 
review teams. The narrative provided describes approaches that, even if supported by 
evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school implemented a plan for monitoring the 
integration of the ACCR Standards into instruction in Reading because the narrative 
does not describe a system that includes processes to monitor the integration of ACCR 
Standards into instruction and provide some analysis and feedback to further develop 
the system which would have  provided evidence of a sustained improvement plan that 
includes implementation of a plan for monitoring the integration of the Arizona’s 
College and Career Ready Standards into instruction. Rather, the Charter Holder 
provided evidence of the beginning stages of monitoring and evaluating standards and 
instructional practices. 


Assessment: This area is initially scored as Approaches. The narrative describes an 


Curriculum: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder did not  provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a curriculum that contributes to increased student growth and 
proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of disjointed efforts to 
develop or address school curriculum aligned with ACCR Standards.  


Instruction: This area is scored as Falls Far Below.  Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR Standards into 
instruction. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of the beginning stages of 
monitoring and evaluating standards and instructional practices. 


Assessment: This area is scored as Approaches.  Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder provided evidence of an assessment approach including data collection from 
multiple assessments, such as formative and benchmark assessments, but did not 
provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a 
plan for monitoring and documenting student proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder 
provided evidence of an assessment approach that is not comprehensive nor aligned 
with the curriculum and instructional practices. The evidence demonstrated that little 
data is collected and data is not used to make instructional decisions. 


Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below.  Through the DSP 
process the Charter Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan 
that includes implementation of a professional development plan that contributed to 
increased student growth and proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder’s evidence 
demonstrated that the Charter Holder is at the beginning stages of developing a 
professional development plan based on identified teacher learning needs. Professional 
development is usually external and determined without regard to an overall school 
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assessment approach which includes data collection from multiple assessments, such as 
formative and summative assessments, common/benchmark assessments, and data 
review teams. The narrative provided describes an approach that, even if supported by 
evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school implemented a plan for monitoring and 
documenting changes in student growth on ACCR Standards for Reading because the 
narrative does not describe a system based on clearly defined performance measures 
aligned with the curriculum and instructional methodology which would have provided 
evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a plan for 
monitoring and documenting student growth. Rather, the Charter Holder provided 
evidence of an assessment approach that is not comprehensive nor aligned with the 
curriculum and instructional practices. The evidence demonstrated that little data is 
collected and data is not used to make instructional decisions. 


Professional Development: This area is initially scored as Falls Far Below. The narrative 
describes a professional development approach that focuses on areas of high 
importance. The narrative describes a plan that, even if supported by evidence, cannot 
demonstrate that the school implemented a professional development plan to increase 
student growth in Reading because the narrative does not describe a comprehensive 
plan that is aligned with teacher learning needs, includes follow-up and monitoring 
strategies, and supports high quality implementation which would have provided 
evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a 
professional development plan that contributed to increased student growth. Rather, 
the Charter Holder’s evidence demonstrated that the Charter Holder is at the beginning 
stages of developing a professional development plan based on identified teacher 
learning needs. Professional development is usually external and determined without 
regard to an overall school plan.  


Data: Limited data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate increased student 
growth in Reading. Data must demonstrate improvement as compared to prior years. 


plan.  


Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate increased student 
growth in Reading as compared to prior years. 


1b. Student 
Median Growth 
Percentile (SGP) 
Bottom 25% 
Math 


 I/S 


Curriculum:  This area is initially scored as Approaches. The narrative describes 
processes to evaluate and revise curriculum, including supplemental curriculum, 
evidenced by pacing guides and data review teams, and that the curriculum is adapted 
to meet the needs of students in the bottom 25%. The narrative provided describes 
processes that, even if supported by evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school has 
implemented a curriculum to increase student growth in Math  for students in the 
bottom 25% on  Arizona’s College and Career Ready Standards (ACCR Standards) 
because the narrative does not describe a system that includes processes to create and 
implement curriculum  which would have provided evidence of a sustained 
improvement plan that includes implementation of a curriculum that contributes to 
increased student growth for students in the bottom 25%. Rather, the Charter Holder 
provided evidence of a fragmented approach that the school uses to create and 


Curriculum: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder did not  provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a curriculum that contributes to increased student growth and 
proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of disjointed efforts to 
develop or address school curriculum aligned with ACCR Standards.  


Instruction: This area is scored as Falls Far Below.  Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR Standards into 
instruction. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of the beginning stages of 
monitoring and evaluating standards and instructional practices. 


Assessment: This area is scored as Approaches.  Through the DSP process the Charter 
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implement  school curriculum, aligned with ACCR Standards. The approach lacks 
cohesiveness or alignment with other school improvement efforts. 


Instruction:  This area is initially scored as Falls Far Below. The narrative describes 
processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the teachers evidenced by lesson 
plan reviews, formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom observations, and data 
review teams. The narrative provided describes approaches that, even if supported by 
evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school implemented a plan for monitoring the 
integration of the ACCR Standards into instruction in Math for students in the bottom 
25% because the narrative does not describe a system that includes processes to 
monitor the integration of ACCR Standards into instruction and provide some analysis 
and feedback to further develop the system, and that the processes are adapted to 
meet the needs of students in the bottom 25%, which would have  provided evidence 
of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a plan for monitoring 
the integration of the Arizona’s College and Career Ready Standards into instruction. 
Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of the beginning stages of monitoring and 
evaluating standards and instructional practices. 


Assessment:  This area is initially scored as Approaches. The narrative describes an 
assessment approach which includes data collection from multiple assessments, such as 
formative and summative assessments, common/benchmark assessments, and data 
review teams. The narrative provided describes an approach that, even if supported by 
evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school implemented a plan for monitoring and 
documenting changes in student growth on ACCR Standards for Math for students in 
the bottom 25% because the narrative does not describe a system based on clearly 
defined performance measures aligned with the curriculum and instructional 
methodology, and that is adapted to meet the needs of students in the bottom 25%, 
which would have provided evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a plan for monitoring and documenting student growth. Rather, the 
Charter Holder provided evidence of an assessment approach that is not 
comprehensive nor aligned with the curriculum and instructional practices. The 
evidence demonstrated that little data is collected and data is not used to make 
instructional decisions. 


Professional Development:  This area is initially scored as Falls Far Below. The narrative 
describes a professional development approach that focuses on areas of high 
importance. The narrative describes a plan that, even if supported by evidence, cannot 
demonstrate that the school implemented a professional development plan to increase 
student growth in Math  for students in the bottom 25% because the narrative does not 
describe a comprehensive plan that is aligned with teacher learning needs, includes 
follow-up and monitoring strategies, and supports high quality implementation, and 
that that is adapted to meet the needs of students in the bottom 25%, which would 


Holder provided evidence of an assessment approach including data collection from 
multiple assessments, such as formative and benchmark assessments, but did not 
provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a 
plan for monitoring and documenting student proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder 
provided evidence of an assessment approach that is not comprehensive nor aligned 
with the curriculum and instructional practices. The evidence demonstrated that little 
data is collected and data is not used to make instructional decisions. 


Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below.  Through the DSP 
process the Charter Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan 
that includes implementation of a professional development plan that contributed to 
increased student growth and proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder’s evidence 
demonstrated that the Charter Holder is at the beginning stages of developing a 
professional development plan based on identified teacher learning needs. Professional 
development is usually external and determined without regard to an overall school 
plan.  


Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate increased student 
growth in Math as compared to prior years for students in the bottom 25%. 
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have provided evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation 
of a professional development plan that contributed to increased student growth for 
students in the bottom 25%. Rather, the Charter Holder’s evidence demonstrated that 
the Charter Holder is at the beginning stages of developing a professional development 
plan based on identified teacher learning needs. Professional development is usually 
external and determined without regard to an overall school plan. 


Data: Limited data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate increased student 
growth in Math for students in the bottom 25%. Data must be disaggregated for the 
students in the bottom 25% and must demonstrate improvement as compared to prior 
years. 


1b. Student 
Median Growth 
Percentile (SGP) 
Bottom 25% 
Reading  


 I/S 


Curriculum:   This area is initially scored as Approaches. The narrative describes 
processes to evaluate and revise curriculum, including supplemental curriculum, 
evidenced by pacing guides and data review teams, and that the curriculum is adapted 
to meet the needs of students in the bottom 25%. The narrative provided describes 
processes that, even if supported by evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school has 
implemented a curriculum to increase student growth in Reading  for students in the 
bottom 25% on  Arizona’s College and Career Ready Standards (ACCR Standards) 
because the narrative does not describe a system that includes processes to create and 
implement curriculum  which would have provided evidence of a sustained 
improvement plan that includes implementation of a curriculum that contributes to 
increased student growth for students in the bottom 25%. Rather, the Charter Holder 
provided evidence of a fragmented approach that the school uses to create and 
implement  school curriculum, aligned with ACCR Standards. The approach lacks 
cohesiveness or alignment with other school improvement efforts. 


Instruction:  This area is initially scored as Falls Far Below. The narrative describes 
processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the teachers evidenced by lesson 
plan reviews, formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom observations, and data 
review teams. The narrative provided describes approaches that, even if supported by 
evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school implemented a plan for monitoring the 
integration of the ACCR Standards into instruction in Reading for students in the bottom 
25% because the narrative does not describe a system that includes processes to 
monitor the integration of ACCR Standards into instruction and provide some analysis 
and feedback to further develop the system, and that the processes are adapted to 
meet the needs of students in the bottom 25%, which would have  provided evidence 
of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a plan for monitoring 
the integration of the Arizona’s College and Career Ready Standards into instruction. 
Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of the beginning stages of monitoring and 
evaluating standards and instructional practices. 


Assessment:  This area is initially scored as Approaches. The narrative describes an 


Curriculum: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder did not  provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a curriculum that contributes to increased student growth and 
proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of disjointed efforts to 
develop or address school curriculum aligned with ACCR Standards.  


Instruction: This area is scored as Falls Far Below.  Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR Standards into 
instruction. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of the beginning stages of 
monitoring and evaluating standards and instructional practices. 


Assessment: This area is scored as Approaches.  Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder provided evidence of an assessment approach including data collection from 
multiple assessments, such as formative and benchmark assessments, but did not 
provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a 
plan for monitoring and documenting student proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder 
provided evidence of an assessment approach that is not comprehensive nor aligned 
with the curriculum and instructional practices. The evidence demonstrated that little 
data is collected and data is not used to make instructional decisions. 


Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below.  Through the DSP 
process the Charter Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan 
that includes implementation of a professional development plan that contributed to 
increased student growth and proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder’s evidence 
demonstrated that the Charter Holder is at the beginning stages of developing a 
professional development plan based on identified teacher learning needs. Professional 
development is usually external and determined without regard to an overall school 
plan.  


Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate increased student 
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assessment approach which includes data collection from multiple assessments, such as 
formative and summative assessments, common/benchmark assessments, and data 
review teams. The narrative provided describes an approach that, even if supported by 
evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school implemented a plan for monitoring and 
documenting changes in student growth on ACCR Standards for Reading for students in 
the bottom 25% because the narrative does not describe a system based on clearly 
defined performance measures aligned with the curriculum and instructional 
methodology, and that is adapted to meet the needs of students in the bottom 25%, 
which would have provided evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a plan for monitoring and documenting student growth. Rather, the 
Charter Holder provided evidence of an assessment approach that is not 
comprehensive nor aligned with the curriculum and instructional practices. The 
evidence demonstrated that little data is collected and data is not used to make 
instructional decisions. 


Professional Development:  This area is initially scored as Falls Far Below. The narrative 
describes a professional development approach that focuses on areas of high 
importance. The narrative describes a plan that, even if supported by evidence, cannot 
demonstrate that the school implemented a professional development plan to increase 
student growth in Reading  for students in the bottom 25% because the narrative does 
not describe a comprehensive plan that is aligned with teacher learning needs, includes 
follow-up and monitoring strategies, and supports high quality implementation, and 
that that is adapted to meet the needs of students in the bottom 25%, which would 
have provided evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation 
of a professional development plan that contributed to increased student growth for 
students in the bottom 25%. Rather, the Charter Holder’s evidence demonstrated that 
the Charter Holder is at the beginning stages of developing a professional development 
plan based on identified teacher learning needs. Professional development is usually 
external and determined without regard to an overall school plan. 


Data: Limited data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate increased student 
growth in Reading for students in the bottom 25%. Data must be disaggregated for the 
students in the bottom 25% and must demonstrate improvement as compared to prior 
years. 


growth in Reading as compared to prior years for students in the bottom 25%. 


2a. Percent 
Passing 
Math 


 I/S 


Curriculum:  This area is initially scored as Approaches. The narrative describes 
processes to evaluate and revise curriculum, including supplemental curriculum, 
evidenced by pacing guides and data review teams. The narrative provided describes 
processes that, even if supported by evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school has 
implemented a curriculum to increase student proficiency in Math on  Arizona’s College 
and Career Ready Standards (ACCR Standards) because the narrative does not describe 
a system that includes processes to create and implement curriculum  which would 


Curriculum: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder did not  provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a curriculum that contributes to increased student growth and 
proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of disjointed efforts to 
develop or address school curriculum aligned with ACCR Standards.  


Instruction: This area is scored as Falls Far Below.  Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
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have provided evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation 
of a curriculum that contributes to increased student proficiency. Rather, the Charter 
Holder provided evidence of a fragmented approach that the school uses to create and 
implement  school curriculum, aligned with ACCR Standards. The approach lacks 
cohesiveness or alignment with other school improvement efforts. 


Instruction:  This area is initially scored as Falls Far Below. The narrative describes 
processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the teachers evidenced by lesson 
plan reviews, formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom observations, and data 
review teams. The narrative provided describes approaches that, even if supported by 
evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school implemented a plan for monitoring the 
integration of the ACCR Standards into instruction in Math because the narrative does 
not describe a system that includes processes to monitor the integration of ACCR 
Standards into instruction and provide some analysis and feedback to further develop 
the system which would have  provided evidence of a sustained improvement plan that 
includes implementation of a plan for monitoring the integration of the Arizona’s 
College and Career Ready Standards into instruction. Rather, the Charter Holder 
provided evidence of the beginning stages of monitoring and evaluating standards and 
instructional practices. 


Assessment:  This area is initially scored as Approaches. The narrative describes an 
assessment approach which includes data collection from multiple assessments, such as 
formative and summative assessments, common/benchmark assessments, and data 
review teams. The narrative provided describes an approach that, even if supported by 
evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school implemented a plan for monitoring and 
documenting changes in student proficiency on ACCR Standards for Math because the 
narrative does not describe a system based on clearly defined performance measures 
aligned with the curriculum and instructional methodology which would have provided 
evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a plan for 
monitoring and documenting student proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder provided 
evidence of an assessment approach that is not comprehensive nor aligned with the 
curriculum and instructional practices. The evidence demonstrated that little data is 
collected and data is not used to make instructional decisions. 


Professional Development:  This area is initially scored as Falls Far Below. The narrative 
describes a professional development approach that focuses on areas of high 
importance. The narrative describes a plan that, even if supported by evidence, cannot 
demonstrate that the school implemented a professional development plan to increase 
student  proficiency in Math because the narrative does not describe a comprehensive 
plan that is aligned with teacher learning needs, includes follow-up and monitoring 
strategies, and supports high quality implementation which would have provided 
evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a 


implementation of a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR Standards into 
instruction. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of the beginning stages of 
monitoring and evaluating standards and instructional practices. 


Assessment: This area is scored as Approaches.  Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder provided evidence of an assessment approach including data collection from 
multiple assessments, such as formative and benchmark assessments, but did not 
provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a 
plan for monitoring and documenting student proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder 
provided evidence of an assessment approach that is not comprehensive nor aligned 
with the curriculum and instructional practices. The evidence demonstrated that little 
data is collected and data is not used to make instructional decisions. 


Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below.  Through the DSP 
process the Charter Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan 
that includes implementation of a professional development plan that contributed to 
increased student growth and proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder’s evidence 
demonstrated that the Charter Holder is at the beginning stages of developing a 
professional development plan based on identified teacher learning needs. Professional 
development is usually external and determined without regard to an overall school 
plan.  


Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate increased student 
proficiency in Math as compared to prior years. 
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professional development plan that contributed to increased student  proficiency. 
Rather, the Charter Holder’s evidence demonstrated that the Charter Holder is at the 
beginning stages of developing a professional development plan based on identified 
teacher learning needs. Professional development is usually external and determined 
without regard to an overall school plan.   


Data: Limited data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate increased student 
proficiency in Math. Data must demonstrate improvement as compared to prior years. 


2a. Percent 
Passing 
Reading 


 I/S 


Curriculum:   This area is initially scored as Approaches. The narrative describes 
processes to evaluate and revise curriculum, including supplemental curriculum, 
evidenced by pacing guides and data review teams. The narrative provided describes 
processes that, even if supported by evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school has 
implemented a curriculum to increase student proficiency in Reading on  Arizona’s 
College and Career Ready Standards (ACCR Standards) because the narrative does not 
describe a system that includes processes to create and implement curriculum which 
would have provided evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a curriculum that contributes to increased student proficiency. 
Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of a fragmented approach that the school 
uses to create and implement  school curriculum, aligned with ACCR Standards. The 
approach lacks cohesiveness or alignment with other school improvement efforts. 


Instruction:  This area is initially scored as Falls Far Below. The narrative describes 
processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the teachers evidenced by lesson 
plan reviews, formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom observations, and data 
review teams. The narrative provided describes approaches that, even if supported by 
evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school implemented a plan for monitoring the 
integration of the ACCR Standards into instruction in Reading because the narrative 
does not describe a system that includes processes to monitor the integration of ACCR 
Standards into instruction and provide some analysis and feedback to further develop 
the system which would have  provided evidence of a sustained improvement plan that 
includes implementation of a plan for monitoring the integration of the Arizona’s 
College and Career Ready Standards into instruction. Rather, the Charter Holder 
provided evidence of the beginning stages of monitoring and evaluating standards and 
instructional practices. 
 
Assessment:  This area is initially scored as Approaches. The narrative describes an 
assessment approach which includes data collection from multiple assessments, such as 
formative and summative assessments, common/benchmark assessments, and data 
review teams. The narrative provided describes an approach that, even if supported by 
evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school implemented a plan for monitoring and 
documenting changes in student proficiency on ACCR Standards for Reading because 


Curriculum: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder did not  provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a curriculum that contributes to increased student growth and 
proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of disjointed efforts to 
develop or address school curriculum aligned with ACCR Standards.  


Instruction: This area is scored as Falls Far Below.  Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR Standards into 
instruction. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of the beginning stages of 
monitoring and evaluating standards and instructional practices. 


Assessment: This area is scored as Approaches.  Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder provided evidence of an assessment approach including data collection from 
multiple assessments, such as formative and benchmark assessments, but did not 
provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a 
plan for monitoring and documenting student proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder 
provided evidence of an assessment approach that is not comprehensive nor aligned 
with the curriculum and instructional practices. The evidence demonstrated that little 
data is collected and data is not used to make instructional decisions. 


Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below.  Through the DSP 
process the Charter Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan 
that includes implementation of a professional development plan that contributed to 
increased student growth and proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder’s evidence 
demonstrated that the Charter Holder is at the beginning stages of developing a 
professional development plan based on identified teacher learning needs. Professional 
development is usually external and determined without regard to an overall school 
plan.  


Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate increased student 
proficiency in Reading as compared to prior years. 
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the narrative does not describe a system based on clearly defined performance 
measures aligned with the curriculum and instructional methodology which would have 
provided evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a 
plan for monitoring and documenting student proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder 
provided evidence of an assessment approach that is not comprehensive nor aligned 
with the curriculum and instructional practices. The evidence demonstrated that little 
data is collected and data is not used to make instructional decisions. 


Professional Development:  This area is initially scored as Falls Far Below. The narrative 
describes a professional development approach that focuses on areas of high 
importance. The narrative describes a plan that, even if supported by evidence, cannot 
demonstrate that the school implemented a professional development plan to increase 
student  proficiency in Reading because the narrative does not describe a 
comprehensive plan that is aligned with teacher learning needs, includes follow-up and 
monitoring strategies, and supports high quality implementation which would have 
provided evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a 
professional development plan that contributed to increased student  proficiency. 
Rather, the Charter Holder’s evidence demonstrated that the Charter Holder is at the 
beginning stages of developing a professional development plan based on identified 
teacher learning needs. Professional development is usually external and determined 
without regard to an overall school plan. 


Data: Limited data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate increased student 
proficiency in Reading. Data must demonstrate improvement as compared to prior 
years. 


2b. Composite 
School 
Comparison 
(Traditional and 
Small Schools 
only)  
Math 


 I/S 


Curriculum:   This area is initially scored as Approaches. The narrative describes 
processes to evaluate and revise curriculum, including supplemental curriculum, 
evidenced by pacing guides and data review teams, and that the curriculum is adapted 
to meet the needs of  ELL students, FRL students, and students with disabilities . The 
narrative provided describes processes that, even if supported by evidence, cannot 
demonstrate that the school has implemented a curriculum to increase student 
proficiency in Math  for ELL students, FRL students, and students with disabilities on  
Arizona’s College and Career Ready Standards (ACCR Standards) because the narrative 
does not describe a system that includes processes to create and implement curriculum  
which would have provided evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a curriculum that contributes to increased student proficiency for 
ELL students, FRL students, and students with disabilities. Rather, the Charter Holder 
provided evidence of a fragmented approach that the school uses to create and 
implement  school curriculum, aligned with ACCR Standards. The approach lacks 
cohesiveness or alignment with other school improvement efforts. 


Instruction:  This area is initially scored as Falls Far Below. The narrative describes 


Curriculum: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder did not  provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a curriculum that contributes to increased student growth and 
proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of disjointed efforts to 
develop or address school curriculum aligned with ACCR Standards.  


Instruction: This area is scored as Falls Far Below.  Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR Standards into 
instruction. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of the beginning stages of 
monitoring and evaluating standards and instructional practices. 


Assessment: This area is scored as Approaches.  Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder provided evidence of an assessment approach including data collection from 
multiple assessments, such as formative and benchmark assessments, but did not 
provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a 
plan for monitoring and documenting student proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder 
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processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the teachers evidenced by lesson 
plan reviews, formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom observations, and data 
review teams. The narrative provided describes approaches that, even if supported by 
evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school implemented a plan for monitoring the 
integration of the ACCR Standards into instruction in Math for  ELL students, FRL 
students, and students with disabilities because the narrative does not describe a 
system that includes processes to monitor the integration of ACCR Standards into 
instruction and provide some analysis and feedback to further develop the system, and 
that the processes are adapted to meet the needs of  ELL students, FRL students, and 
students with disabilities, which would have  provided evidence of a sustained 
improvement plan that includes implementation of a plan for monitoring the 
integration of the Arizona’s College and Career Ready Standards into instruction. 
Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of the beginning stages of monitoring and 
evaluating standards and instructional practices. 


Assessment:  This area is initially scored as Approaches. The narrative describes an 
assessment approach which includes data collection from multiple assessments, such as 
formative and summative assessments, common/benchmark assessments, and data 
review teams. The narrative provided describes an approach that, even if supported by 
evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school implemented a plan for monitoring and 
documenting changes in student proficiency on ACCR Standards for Math for ELL 
students, FRL students, and students with disabilities because the narrative does not 
describe a system based on clearly defined performance measures aligned with the 
curriculum and instructional methodology, and that is adapted to meet the needs of  
ELL students, FRL students, and students with disabilities, which would have provided 
evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a plan for 
monitoring and documenting student proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder provided 
evidence of an assessment approach that is not comprehensive nor aligned with the 
curriculum and instructional practices. The evidence demonstrated that little data is 
collected and data is not used to make instructional decisions. 


Professional Development:  This area is initially scored as Falls Far Below. The narrative 
describes a professional development approach that focuses on areas of high 
importance. The narrative describes a plan that, even if supported by evidence, cannot 
demonstrate that the school implemented a professional development plan to increase 
student proficiency in Math  for ELL students, FRL students, and students with 
disabilities because the narrative does not describe a comprehensive plan that is 
aligned with teacher learning needs, includes follow-up and monitoring strategies, and 
supports high quality implementation, and that that is adapted to meet the needs of  
ELL students, FRL students, and students with disabilities, which would have provided 
evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a 
professional development plan that contributed to increased student  proficiency for 


provided evidence of an assessment approach that is not comprehensive nor aligned 
with the curriculum and instructional practices. The evidence demonstrated that little 
data is collected and data is not used to make instructional decisions. 


Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below.  Through the DSP 
process the Charter Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan 
that includes implementation of a professional development plan that contributed to 
increased student growth and proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder’s evidence 
demonstrated that the Charter Holder is at the beginning stages of developing a 
professional development plan based on identified teacher learning needs. Professional 
development is usually external and determined without regard to an overall school 
plan.  


Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate increased student 
proficiency in Math as compared to prior years for ELL students and students with 
disabilities. 
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ELL students, FRL students, and students with disabilities. Rather, the Charter Holder’s 
evidence demonstrated that the Charter Holder is at the beginning stages of developing 
a professional development plan based on identified teacher learning needs. 
Professional development is usually external and determined without regard to an 
overall school plan. 


Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate increased student 
proficiency in Math for ELL students, FRL students, and students with disabilities. Data 
must be disaggregated for the students in the ELL students, FRL students, and students 
with disabilities subgroup and must demonstrate improvement as compared to prior 
years. 


2b. Composite 
School 
Comparison 
(Traditional and 
Small Schools 
only)  
Reading 


 I/S 


Curriculum:    This area is initially scored as Approaches. The narrative describes 
processes to evaluate and revise curriculum, including supplemental curriculum, 
evidenced by pacing guides and data review teams, and that the curriculum is adapted 
to meet the needs of  ELL students, FRL students, and students with disabilities . The 
narrative provided describes processes that, even if supported by evidence, cannot 
demonstrate that the school has implemented a curriculum to increase student 
proficiency in Reading  for ELL students, FRL students, and students with disabilities on  
Arizona’s College and Career Ready Standards (ACCR Standards) because the narrative 
does not describe a system that includes processes to create and implement curriculum  
which would have provided evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a curriculum that contributes to increased student proficiency for 
ELL students, FRL students, and students with disabilities. Rather, the Charter Holder 
provided evidence of a fragmented approach that the school uses to create and 
implement  school curriculum, aligned with ACCR Standards. The approach lacks 
cohesiveness or alignment with other school improvement efforts. 


Instruction:  This area is initially scored as Falls Far Below. The narrative describes 
processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the teachers evidenced by lesson 
plan reviews, formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom observations, and data 
review teams. The narrative provided describes approaches that, even if supported by 
evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school implemented a plan for monitoring the 
integration of the ACCR Standards into instruction in Reading for  ELL students, FRL 
students, and students with disabilities because the narrative does not describe a 
system that includes processes to monitor the integration of ACCR Standards into 
instruction and provide some analysis and feedback to further develop the system, and 
that the processes are adapted to meet the needs of  ELL students, FRL students, and 
students with disabilities, which would have  provided evidence of a sustained 
improvement plan that includes implementation of a plan for monitoring the 
integration of the Arizona’s College and Career Ready Standards into instruction. 
Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of the beginning stages of monitoring and 


Curriculum: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder did not  provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a curriculum that contributes to increased student growth and 
proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of disjointed efforts to 
develop or address school curriculum aligned with ACCR Standards.  


Instruction: This area is scored as Falls Far Below.  Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR Standards into 
instruction. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of the beginning stages of 
monitoring and evaluating standards and instructional practices. 


Assessment: This area is scored as Approaches.  Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder provided evidence of an assessment approach including data collection from 
multiple assessments, such as formative and benchmark assessments, but did not 
provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a 
plan for monitoring and documenting student proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder 
provided evidence of an assessment approach that is not comprehensive nor aligned 
with the curriculum and instructional practices. The evidence demonstrated that little 
data is collected and data is not used to make instructional decisions. 


Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below.  Through the DSP 
process the Charter Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan 
that includes implementation of a professional development plan that contributed to 
increased student growth and proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder’s evidence 
demonstrated that the Charter Holder is at the beginning stages of developing a 
professional development plan based on identified teacher learning needs. Professional 
development is usually external and determined without regard to an overall school 
plan.  


Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate increased student 
proficiency in Reading as compared to prior years for ELL students and students with 
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evaluating standards and instructional practices. 


Assessment:  This area is initially scored as Approaches. The narrative describes an 
assessment approach which includes data collection from multiple assessments, such as 
formative and summative assessments, common/benchmark assessments, and data 
review teams. The narrative provided describes an approach that, even if supported by 
evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school implemented a plan for monitoring and 
documenting changes in student proficiency on ACCR Standards for Reading for ELL 
students, FRL students, and students with disabilities because the narrative does not 
describe a system based on clearly defined performance measures aligned with the 
curriculum and instructional methodology, and that is adapted to meet the needs of  
ELL students, FRL students, and students with disabilities, which would have provided 
evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a plan for 
monitoring and documenting student proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder provided 
evidence of an assessment approach that is not comprehensive nor aligned with the 
curriculum and instructional practices. The evidence demonstrated that little data is 
collected and data is not used to make instructional decisions. 


Professional Development:  This area is initially scored as Falls Far Below. The narrative 
describes a professional development approach that focuses on areas of high 
importance. The narrative describes a plan that, even if supported by evidence, cannot 
demonstrate that the school implemented a professional development plan to increase 
student proficiency in Reading  for ELL students, FRL students, and students with 
disabilities because the narrative does not describe a comprehensive plan that is 
aligned with teacher learning needs, includes follow-up and monitoring strategies, and 
supports high quality implementation, and that that is adapted to meet the needs of  
ELL students, FRL students, and students with disabilities, which would have provided 
evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a 
professional development plan that contributed to increased student  proficiency for 
ELL students, FRL students, and students with disabilities. Rather, the Charter Holder’s 
evidence demonstrated that the Charter Holder is at the beginning stages of developing 
a professional development plan based on identified teacher learning needs. 
Professional development is usually external and determined without regard to an 
overall school plan.  


Data:  No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate increased student 
proficiency in Reading for ELL students, FRL students, and students with disabilities. 
Data must be disaggregated for the students in the ELL students, FRL students, and 
students with disabilities subgroup and must demonstrate improvement as compared 
to prior years. 


disabilities. 
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2c. Subgroup 
Comparison 
(2b. for 
Alternative)  
ELL 
 Math 


 I/S 


Curriculum:    This area is initially scored as Approaches. The narrative describes 
processes to evaluate and revise curriculum, including supplemental curriculum, 
evidenced by pacing guides and data review teams, and that the curriculum is adapted 
to meet the needs of  ELL students. The narrative provided describes processes that, 
even if supported by evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school has implemented a 
curriculum to increase student proficiency in Math  for ELL students on  Arizona’s 
College and Career Ready Standards (ACCR Standards) because the narrative does not 
describe a system that includes processes to create and implement curriculum  which 
would have provided evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a curriculum that contributes to increased student proficiency for 
ELL students. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of a fragmented approach 
that the school uses to create and implement  school curriculum, aligned with ACCR 
Standards. The approach lacks cohesiveness or alignment with other school 
improvement efforts. 


Instruction:  This area is initially scored as Falls Far Below. The narrative describes 
processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the teachers evidenced by lesson 
plan reviews, formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom observations, and data 
review teams. The narrative provided describes approaches that, even if supported by 
evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school implemented a plan for monitoring the 
integration of the ACCR Standards into instruction in Math for ELL students because the 
narrative does not describe a system that includes processes to monitor the integration 
of ACCR Standards into instruction and provide some analysis and feedback to further 
develop the system, and that the processes are adapted to meet the needs of  ELL 
students, which would have  provided evidence of a sustained improvement plan that 
includes implementation of a plan for monitoring the integration of the Arizona’s 
College and Career Ready Standards into instruction. Rather, the Charter Holder 
provided evidence of the beginning stages of monitoring and evaluating standards and 
instructional practices. 


Assessment:  This area is initially scored as Approaches. The narrative describes an 
assessment approach which includes data collection from multiple assessments, such as 
formative and summative assessments, common/benchmark assessments, and data 
review teams. The narrative provided describes an approach that, even if supported by 
evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school implemented a plan for monitoring and 
documenting changes in student proficiency on ACCR Standards for Math for ELL 
students because the narrative does not describe a system based on clearly defined 
performance measures aligned with the curriculum and instructional methodology, and 
that is adapted to meet the needs of  ELL students, which would have provided 
evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a plan for 
monitoring and documenting student proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder provided 
evidence of an assessment approach that is not comprehensive nor aligned with the 


Curriculum: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder did not  provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a curriculum that contributes to increased student growth and 
proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of disjointed efforts to 
develop or address school curriculum aligned with ACCR Standards.  


Instruction: This area is scored as Falls Far Below.  Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR Standards into 
instruction. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of the beginning stages of 
monitoring and evaluating standards and instructional practices. 


Assessment: This area is scored as Approaches.  Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder provided evidence of an assessment approach including data collection from 
multiple assessments, such as formative and benchmark assessments, but did not 
provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a 
plan for monitoring and documenting student proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder 
provided evidence of an assessment approach that is not comprehensive nor aligned 
with the curriculum and instructional practices. The evidence demonstrated that little 
data is collected and data is not used to make instructional decisions. 


Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below.  Through the DSP 
process the Charter Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan 
that includes implementation of a professional development plan that contributed to 
increased student growth and proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder’s evidence 
demonstrated that the Charter Holder is at the beginning stages of developing a 
professional development plan based on identified teacher learning needs. Professional 
development is usually external and determined without regard to an overall school 
plan.  


Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate increased student 
proficiency in Math as compared to prior years for ELL students. 
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curriculum and instructional practices. The evidence demonstrated that little data is 
collected and data is not used to make instructional decisions. 


Professional Development:  This area is initially scored as Falls Far Below. The narrative 
describes a professional development approach that focuses on areas of high 
importance. The narrative describes a plan that, even if supported by evidence, cannot 
demonstrate that the school implemented a professional development plan to increase 
student proficiency in Math  for ELL students because the narrative does not describe a 
comprehensive plan that is aligned with teacher learning needs, includes follow-up and 
monitoring strategies, and supports high quality implementation, and that that is 
adapted to meet the needs of  ELL students, which would have provided evidence of a 
sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a professional 
development plan that contributed to increased student  proficiency for ELL students. 
Rather, the Charter Holder’s evidence demonstrated that the Charter Holder is at the 
beginning stages of developing a professional development plan based on identified 
teacher learning needs. Professional development is usually external and determined 
without regard to an overall school plan. 


Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate increased student 
proficiency in Math for ELL students. Data must be disaggregated for the students in the 
ELL subgroup and must demonstrate improvement as compared to prior years. 


2c. Subgroup 
Comparison 
(2b. for 
Alternative)  
ELL 
 Reading 


 I/S 


Curriculum:    This area is initially scored as Approaches. The narrative describes 
processes to evaluate and revise curriculum, including supplemental curriculum, 
evidenced by pacing guides and data review teams, and that the curriculum is adapted 
to meet the needs of  ELL students. The narrative provided describes processes that, 
even if supported by evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school has implemented a 
curriculum to increase student proficiency in Reading  for ELL students on  Arizona’s 
College and Career Ready Standards (ACCR Standards) because the narrative does not 
describe a system that includes processes to create and implement curriculum  which 
would have provided evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a curriculum that contributes to increased student proficiency for 
ELL students. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of a fragmented approach 
that the school uses to create and implement  school curriculum, aligned with ACCR 
Standards. The approach lacks cohesiveness or alignment with other school 
improvement efforts. 


Instruction:  This area is initially scored as Falls Far Below. The narrative describes 
processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the teachers evidenced by lesson 
plan reviews, formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom observations, and data 
review teams. The narrative provided describes approaches that, even if supported by 
evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school implemented a plan for monitoring the 
integration of the ACCR Standards into instruction in Reading for ELL students because 


Curriculum: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder did not  provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a curriculum that contributes to increased student growth and 
proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of disjointed efforts to 
develop or address school curriculum aligned with ACCR Standards.  


Instruction: This area is scored as Falls Far Below.  Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR Standards into 
instruction. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of the beginning stages of 
monitoring and evaluating standards and instructional practices. 


Assessment: This area is scored as Approaches.  Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder provided evidence of an assessment approach including data collection from 
multiple assessments, such as formative and benchmark assessments, but did not 
provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a 
plan for monitoring and documenting student proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder 
provided evidence of an assessment approach that is not comprehensive nor aligned 
with the curriculum and instructional practices. The evidence demonstrated that little 
data is collected and data is not used to make instructional decisions. 


Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below.  Through the DSP 
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the narrative does not describe a system that includes processes to monitor the 
integration of ACCR Standards into instruction and provide some analysis and feedback 
to further develop the system, and that the processes are adapted to meet the needs of  
ELL students, which would have  provided evidence of a sustained improvement plan 
that includes implementation of a plan for monitoring the integration of the Arizona’s 
College and Career Ready Standards into instruction. Rather, the Charter Holder 
provided evidence of the beginning stages of monitoring and evaluating standards and 
instructional practices. 


Assessment:  This area is initially scored as Approaches. The narrative describes an 
assessment approach which includes data collection from multiple assessments, such as 
formative and summative assessments, common/benchmark assessments, and data 
review teams. The narrative provided describes an approach that, even if supported by 
evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school implemented a plan for monitoring and 
documenting changes in student  proficiency on ACCR Standards for Reading for ELL 
students because the narrative does not describe a system based on clearly defined 
performance measures aligned with the curriculum and instructional methodology, and 
that is adapted to meet the needs of  ELL students, which would have provided 
evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a plan for 
monitoring and documenting student proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder provided 
evidence of an assessment approach that is not comprehensive nor aligned with the 
curriculum and instructional practices. The evidence demonstrated that little data is 
collected and data is not used to make instructional decisions. 


Professional Development:  This area is initially scored as Falls Far Below. The narrative 
describes a professional development approach that focuses on areas of high 
importance. The narrative describes a plan that, even if supported by evidence, cannot 
demonstrate that the school implemented a professional development plan to increase 
student proficiency in Reading  for ELL students because the narrative does not describe 
a comprehensive plan that is aligned with teacher learning needs, includes follow-up 
and monitoring strategies, and supports high quality implementation, and that that is 
adapted to meet the needs of  ELL students, which would have provided evidence of a 
sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a professional 
development plan that contributed to increased student  proficiency for ELL students. 
Rather, the Charter Holder’s evidence demonstrated that the Charter Holder is at the 
beginning stages of developing a professional development plan based on identified 
teacher learning needs. Professional development is usually external and determined 
without regard to an overall school plan.  


Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate increased student 
proficiency in Reading for ELL students. Data must be disaggregated for the students in 
the ELL subgroup and must demonstrate improvement as compared to prior years. 


process the Charter Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan 
that includes implementation of a professional development plan that contributed to 
increased student growth and proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder’s evidence 
demonstrated that the Charter Holder is at the beginning stages of developing a 
professional development plan based on identified teacher learning needs. Professional 
development is usually external and determined without regard to an overall school 
plan.  


Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate increased student 
proficiency in Reading as compared to prior years for ELL students. 
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2c. Subgroup 
Comparison 
(2b. for 
Alternative)  
Students with 
disabilities 
 Math 


 I/S 


Curriculum:    This area is initially scored as Approaches. The narrative describes 
processes to evaluate and revise curriculum, including supplemental curriculum, 
evidenced by pacing guides and data review teams, and that the curriculum is adapted 
to meet the needs of  students with disabilities. The narrative provided describes 
processes that, even if supported by evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school has 
implemented a curriculum to increase student proficiency in Math  for students with 
disabilities on  Arizona’s College and Career Ready Standards (ACCR Standards) because 
the narrative does not describe a system that includes processes to create and 
implement curriculum  which would have provided evidence of a sustained 
improvement plan that includes implementation of a curriculum that contributes to 
increased student proficiency for students with disabilities. Rather, the Charter Holder 
provided evidence of a fragmented approach that the school uses to create and 
implement  school curriculum, aligned with ACCR Standards. The approach lacks 
cohesiveness or alignment with other school improvement efforts. 


Instruction:  This area is initially scored as Falls Far Below. The narrative describes 
processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the teachers evidenced by lesson 
plan reviews, formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom observations, and data 
review teams. The narrative provided describes approaches that, even if supported by 
evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school implemented a plan for monitoring the 
integration of the ACCR Standards into instruction in Math for students with disabilities 
because the narrative does not describe a system that includes processes to monitor 
the integration of ACCR Standards into instruction and provide some analysis and 
feedback to further develop the system, and that the processes are adapted to meet 
the needs of  students with disabilities, which would have  provided evidence of a 
sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a plan for monitoring the 
integration of the Arizona’s College and Career Ready Standards into instruction. 
Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of the beginning stages of monitoring and 
evaluating standards and instructional practices. 


Assessment:  This area is initially scored as Approaches. The narrative describes an 
assessment approach which includes data collection from multiple assessments, such as 
formative and summative assessments, common/benchmark assessments, and data 
review teams. The narrative provided describes an approach that, even if supported by 
evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school implemented a plan for monitoring and 
documenting changes in student proficiency on ACCR Standards for Math for students 
with disabilities because the narrative does not describe a system based on clearly 
defined performance measures aligned with the curriculum and instructional 
methodology, and that is adapted to meet the needs of  students with disabilities, 
which would have provided evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a plan for monitoring and documenting student proficiency. Rather, 
the Charter Holder provided evidence of an assessment approach that is not 


Curriculum: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder did not  provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a curriculum that contributes to increased student growth and 
proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of disjointed efforts to 
develop or address school curriculum aligned with ACCR Standards.  


Instruction: This area is scored as Falls Far Below.  Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR Standards into 
instruction. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of the beginning stages of 
monitoring and evaluating standards and instructional practices. 


Assessment: This area is scored as Approaches.  Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder provided evidence of an assessment approach including data collection from 
multiple assessments, such as formative and benchmark assessments, but did not 
provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a 
plan for monitoring and documenting student proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder 
provided evidence of an assessment approach that is not comprehensive nor aligned 
with the curriculum and instructional practices. The evidence demonstrated that little 
data is collected and data is not used to make instructional decisions. 


Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below.  Through the DSP 
process the Charter Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan 
that includes implementation of a professional development plan that contributed to 
increased student growth and proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder’s evidence 
demonstrated that the Charter Holder is at the beginning stages of developing a 
professional development plan based on identified teacher learning needs. Professional 
development is usually external and determined without regard to an overall school 
plan.  


Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate increased student 
proficiency in Math as compared to prior years for students with disabilities. 
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comprehensive nor aligned with the curriculum and instructional practices. The 
evidence demonstrated that little data is collected and data is not used to make 
instructional decisions. 


Professional Development:  This area is initially scored as Falls Far Below. The narrative 
describes a professional development approach that focuses on areas of high 
importance. The narrative describes a plan that, even if supported by evidence, cannot 
demonstrate that the school implemented a professional development plan to increase 
student proficiency in Math  for students with disabilities because the narrative does 
not describe a comprehensive plan that is aligned with teacher learning needs, includes 
follow-up and monitoring strategies, and supports high quality implementation, and 
that that is adapted to meet the needs of students with disabilities, which would have 
provided evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a 
professional development plan that contributed to increased student  proficiency for 
students with disabilities. Rather, the Charter Holder’s evidence demonstrated that the 
Charter Holder is at the beginning stages of developing a professional development 
plan based on identified teacher learning needs. Professional development is usually 
external and determined without regard to an overall school plan.  


Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate increased student 
proficiency in Math for students with disabilities. Data must be disaggregated for the 
students in the students with disabilities subgroup and must demonstrate improvement 
as compared to prior years. 


2c. Subgroup 
Comparison 
(2b. for 
Alternative)  
Students with 
disabilities 
 Reading 


 I/S 


Curriculum:    This area is initially scored as Approaches. The narrative describes 
processes to evaluate and revise curriculum, including supplemental curriculum, 
evidenced by pacing guides and data review teams, and that the curriculum is adapted 
to meet the needs of  students with disabilities. The narrative provided describes 
processes that, even if supported by evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school has 
implemented a curriculum to increase student proficiency in Reading  for students with 
disabilities on  Arizona’s College and Career Ready Standards (ACCR Standards) because 
the narrative does not describe a system that includes processes to create and 
implement curriculum  which would have provided evidence of a sustained 
improvement plan that includes implementation of a curriculum that contributes to 
increased student proficiency for students with disabilities. Rather, the Charter Holder 
provided evidence of a fragmented approach that the school uses to create and 
implement  school curriculum, aligned with ACCR Standards. The approach lacks 
cohesiveness or alignment with other school improvement efforts. 


Instruction:  This area is initially scored as Falls Far Below. The narrative describes 
processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the teachers evidenced by lesson 
plan reviews, formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom observations, and data 
review teams. The narrative provided describes approaches that, even if supported by 


Curriculum: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder did not  provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a curriculum that contributes to increased student growth and 
proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of disjointed efforts to 
develop or address school curriculum aligned with ACCR Standards.  


Instruction: This area is scored as Falls Far Below.  Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR Standards into 
instruction. Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of the beginning stages of 
monitoring and evaluating standards and instructional practices. 


Assessment: This area is scored as Approaches.  Through the DSP process the Charter 
Holder provided evidence of an assessment approach including data collection from 
multiple assessments, such as formative and benchmark assessments, but did not 
provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a 
plan for monitoring and documenting student proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder 
provided evidence of an assessment approach that is not comprehensive nor aligned 
with the curriculum and instructional practices. The evidence demonstrated that little 
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evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school implemented a plan for monitoring the 
integration of the ACCR Standards into instruction in Reading for students with 
disabilities because the narrative does not describe a system that includes processes to 
monitor the integration of ACCR Standards into instruction and provide some analysis 
and feedback to further develop the system, and that the processes are adapted to 
meet the needs of  students with disabilities, which would have  provided evidence of a 
sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a plan for monitoring the 
integration of the Arizona’s College and Career Ready Standards into instruction. 
Rather, the Charter Holder provided evidence of the beginning stages of monitoring and 
evaluating standards and instructional practices. 


Assessment:  This area is initially scored as Approaches. The narrative describes an 
assessment approach which includes data collection from multiple assessments, such as 
formative and summative assessments, common/benchmark assessments, and data 
review teams. The narrative provided describes an approach that, even if supported by 
evidence, cannot demonstrate that the school implemented a plan for monitoring and 
documenting changes in student proficiency on ACCR Standards for Reading for 
students with disabilities because the narrative does not describe a system based on 
clearly defined performance measures aligned with the curriculum and instructional 
methodology, and that is adapted to meet the needs of  students with disabilities, 
which would have provided evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes 
implementation of a plan for monitoring and documenting student proficiency. Rather, 
the Charter Holder provided evidence of an assessment approach that is not 
comprehensive nor aligned with the curriculum and instructional practices. The 
evidence demonstrated that little data is collected and data is not used to make 
instructional decisions. 


Professional Development:  This area is initially scored as Falls Far Below. The narrative 
describes a professional development approach that focuses on areas of high 
importance. The narrative describes a plan that, even if supported by evidence, cannot 
demonstrate that the school implemented a professional development plan to increase 
student proficiency in Reading  for students with disabilities because the narrative does 
not describe a comprehensive plan that is aligned with teacher learning needs, includes 
follow-up and monitoring strategies, and supports high quality implementation, and 
that that is adapted to meet the needs of students with disabilities, which would have 
provided evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation of a 
professional development plan that contributed to increased student  proficiency for 
students with disabilities. Rather, the Charter Holder’s evidence demonstrated that the 
Charter Holder is at the beginning stages of developing a professional development 
plan based on identified teacher learning needs. Professional development is usually 
external and determined without regard to an overall school plan. 


data is collected and data is not used to make instructional decisions. 


Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below.  Through the DSP 
process the Charter Holder did not provide evidence of a sustained improvement plan 
that includes implementation of a professional development plan that contributed to 
increased student growth and proficiency. Rather, the Charter Holder’s evidence 
demonstrated that the Charter Holder is at the beginning stages of developing a 
professional development plan based on identified teacher learning needs. Professional 
development is usually external and determined without regard to an overall school 
plan.  


Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate increased student 
proficiency in Reading as compared to prior years for students with disabilities. 
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Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate increased student 
proficiency in Reading for students with disabilities. Data must be disaggregated for the 
students in the students with disabilities subgroup and must demonstrate improvement 
as compared to prior years. 
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8/1/2014	
  
	
  
	
  
Arizona	
  State	
  Board	
  for	
  Charter	
  Schools	
  
1616	
  West	
  Adams	
  Street	
  Suite	
  170	
  
Phoenix,	
  Arizona	
  85007	
  
	
  
	
  
To	
  Whom	
  It	
  May	
  Concern:	
  
	
  
The	
  IRS	
  Taxes	
  have	
  been	
  paid.	
  Attached	
  is	
  a	
  copy	
  of	
  the	
  checks	
  that	
  were	
  cut	
  and	
  mailed	
  to	
  the	
  
IRS.	
  Once	
  we	
  have	
  a	
  copy	
  of	
  canceled	
  checks	
  we	
  will	
  send	
  to	
  ASBCS	
  Staff.	
  
	
  
I	
   hope	
   that	
   this	
   letter	
   helps	
   explain	
   what	
   we	
   are	
   trying	
   to	
   accomplish.	
   If	
   you	
   have	
   any	
  
questions	
  please	
  feel	
  free	
  to	
  give	
  me	
  a	
  call	
  at	
  480-­‐399-­‐0655	
  
	
  
	
  
Sincerely,	
  
	
  


	
  
Ryan	
  Christensen	
  
President	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  























!
Near Term Indicators !!


1a. Going Concern !
The Audited Financials for Fiscal Year 2013 included a Going Concern Finding. !
The Going Concern Finding for 2013 is directly attributable to recording a Net Operating Loss for the same period. 
This was the result of the factors explained under Net Income, and will reoccur again in the 2013-2014 fiscal year.  !
The Audited Financials for Fiscal Year 2014 (not complete at this time) are likely to included a Going Concern 
Finding. !
The likely Going Concern Finding for 2014 is directly attributable to recording a Net Operating Loss for the same 
period. This was the result of the factors explained under Net Income, and will not reoccur past the 2013-2014 
fiscal year. !
As indicated in Audited Financials for Fiscal Year 2013 (Note 14), Management of the school developed a plan to 
reduce expenses wherever possible, increase student enrollment, borrow additional funds if necessary, and 
restructure debt. Note 14 of the Audited Financials for Fiscal Year 2013 goes on to state that the ability of the 
school to continue as a going concern is dependent upon it’s success with the above mentioned endeavors. !
The school was successful in its endeavor to restructure debt and provide for the availability of suitable facilities 
(see Settlement Statement for Facilities Purchase). Additionally, the school was awarded a private grant to be used 
for the purpose of securing new facilities (see Grant Award Letter). Based on the revenues generated through both 
the Facilities Purchase (see Settlement Statement for Facilities Purchase) and the private grant award (see Grant 
Award Letter), the school will satisfy all current liabilities (see Balance Sheet Comparison). These factors, combined 
with recording a positive Net Income through the measures described under Net Income 2a. ensures that the 
school will avoid a repeat Going Concern Finding in FY 2015. !
Administrative Oversight & Governance 
Budgeted revenue and spending as compared to actual activities are reviewed on a day to day basis by 
Administration. All adjustments to spending in response to anticipated underperformance in revenue or projected 
overspending are also made on a weekly basis by Administration. All unscheduled expenses (expenses not 
included in the school’s operating budget at the beginning of the operating period) are first reviewed to establish 
whether or not budget capacity exists for the expenditure prior to authorization.  !
Upon review by administration, should an unscheduled expense be deemed necessary, budget capacity will be 
moved from an expense line where it is not needed to the expense line where the unscheduled expense will be 
booked, prior to encumbrance of the expense. The school has also established additional contingency as part of 
each expense object grouping. This funding can be used as a last resort for unscheduled expenses occurring later 
in the fiscal year that are deemed necessary but cannot be paid for through reallocation of budget capacity from 
another expense line.  !
Budget performance is reviews weekly by the Corporate Executives (President, Vice President and Secretary), who 
also monitor and report to the Board of Directors the Statements of Activities, Budget Performance, and statement 
of Cash Flows as part of their weekly meetings. !
Budget performance is reviewed quarterly by the Board of Directors, who also monitors the Statement of Activities, 
Budget Performance, and Statement of Cash Flows as part of their quarterly regular session meetings. !!! !







Sustainability Indicators !
2a. Net Income !
The Audited Financials for Fiscal Year 2013 state a Change in Net Assets of ($705,139).  !
The net operating loss for FY 2013 was the result of a combination of factors that will reoccur again in the 
2013-2014 fiscal year, and are explained below. !
The Preliminary Unaudited Financials for Fiscal Year 2014 state a Change in Net Assets of ($1,287,447), (see Profit 
& Loss FY 2014).  !
The net operating loss for FY 2014 was the result of a combination of factors that will not reoccur past the 
2013-2014 fiscal year, and are explained below. 


Increased Spending in FY 2013 and FY 2014 Related to debt restructuring and a Facilities Project  
From FY 2011 through FY 2012 the previous board members (the “DCS Board”) of the Charter were experiencing 
financial difficulties. !
These financial difficulties were a result that the DCS Board incorrectly identified the market they were moving to in 
2010 and continued to identify themselves as a low income school participating in a national free and reduced 
lunch program, with an emphasis in Special Needs Children. This marketing effort, combined with an inferior 
facility to that of surrounding competitors, caused enrollment to decline over time as existing students moved to 
other schools.  New enrollment was minimal because the DCS Board targeted its marketing toward a very small 
percentage of the population in the area. 


The DCS Board acknowledged the severe financial difficulties the organization was experiencing and, 
consequently, the DCS Board sought cash flow assistance from outside sources.  As a result, the DCS Board 
approved the taking of certain hard money loans the interest costs associated with which were beyond the ability 
of the DCS Board to repay.  Facing closure of the School, the management approached Lawson Financial 
Corporation (the “Bondholder Representative”) in its capacity as bondholder representative of the Series 2010 
Bonds to seek additional funding, counsel and a potential restructuring of the Series 2010 Bonds.  After several 
attempts to work with the management, the DCS Board acknowledged that the Bondholder Representative 
possessed the remedy of replacing the management and the persons constituting the DCS Board.  All but one of 
the members of the DCS Board resigned and, in 2012, the Bondholder Representative replaced the previous DCS 
Board members with the current Corporate Board members (the “Hillcrest Board”).   With the Hillcrest Board in 
place, the Bondholder Representative continued to work cooperatively with the Hillcrest Board.  


Once established, the Hillcrest Board went into immediate action to address and correct the problems of previous 
leadership.  Within the first four months of institution of the new Hillcrest Board, the School has experienced a 
complete turnaround.  The Hillcrest Board found and fixed many previously existing issues involving the budget, 
curriculum, teaching staff, enrollment, and academic accountability.  These changes have attracted surrounding 
students and families to the School.  The School has experienced an overall increase in academic performance 
and student enrollment. 


Consequently, in December of the 2012-2013 school year the school began to record much higher than normal 
operating costs related to facilities, improvements, and staffing as they began positioning to grow substantially in 
the 2014-2015 school year. This resulted in a Change in Net Assets of ($705,139), (see Audited Financial 
Statements for FY 2013). !
The Hillcrest Board made the decision to facilitate growth and to operate in the negative during the 2013-2014 fiscal 
year (see Profit & Loss FY 2014), relying on short term loans and lines of credit that were available to the school at 
the time (see Audited Financials FY 2013 - Note 9 - Lines of Credit). This decision was made with the knowledge 
that these short term loans would not only keep the school’s operations in tact, but would be satisfied in full upon 
entering into the agreement to secure the new facilities referenced above (see Facilities Settlement Statement).  !
This decision allowed the new administrative staff to use the 2013-2014 school year as a planning year to establish 
the operational processes upon which to build a solid foundation, and to ensure the success of the 2014-2015 
academic year and growth. 







Increased Funding and Positive Net Income in 2015 Related to Facilities Project  
The school’s facilities plan is complete, and receipt of funding is well underway (see Facilities Settlement 
Statement). This will ensure a positive Functional Net Operating Income for FY 2015 based on a substantial 
increase in local funding via the award of a local grant designed to be used for securing suitable facilities (see 
Grant Award Letter), as well as the anticipated additional income that will coincide with increased student 
enrollment driven by the school’s new facilities. !
Based on current budgetary projections, the school should record a Functional Net Income in excess of $725,000 in 
FY 2015 (see Profit & Loss Projection FY 2015). Based on the school’s ongoing financial plan, this will serve to 
ensure the sustainability of the organization, and would increase the school’s rating to “Meets Standard” for item 
2a. Net Income. 


Administrative Oversight & Governance 
Budgeted revenue and spending as compared to actual activities are reviewed on a day to day basis by 
Administration. All adjustments to spending in response to anticipated underperformance in revenue or projected 
overspending are also made on a weekly basis by Administration. All unscheduled expenses (expenses not 
included in the school’s operating budget at the beginning of the operating period) are first reviewed to establish 
whether or not budget capacity exists for the expenditure prior to authorization.  !
Upon review by administration, should an unscheduled expense be deemed necessary, budget capacity will be 
moved from an expense line where it is not needed to the expense line where the unscheduled expense will be 
booked, prior to encumbrance of the expense. The school has also established additional contingency as part of 
each expense object grouping. This funding can be used as a last resort for unscheduled expenses occurring later 
in the fiscal year that are deemed necessary but cannot be paid for through reallocation of budget capacity from 
another expense line.  !
Budget performance is reviews weekly by the Corporate Executives (President, Vice President and Secretary), who 
also monitor and report to the Board of Directors the Statements of Activities, Budget Performance, and statement 
of Cash Flows as part of their weekly meetings. !
Budget performance is reviewed quarterly by the Board of Directors, who also monitors the Statement of Activities, 
Budget Performance, and Statement of Cash Flows as part of their quarterly regular session meetings. !







!
2c. Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio !
The Audited Financials for Fiscal Year 2013 indicate a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio of -.41.  !
The net operating loss recorded in FY 2013 led to the fixed charge coverage ratio deficit. This was directly 
attributable to the causes outlined in the response to item 2a. Net Income: increased expenses related to 
facilities, improvements, and administrative staffing. !
The school has sufficient cash available (in the form of short term lines of credit and loans) to augment 
cash flow to fund the fixed charge deficit for the foreseeable future (see Note 9 - Lines of Credit, Audited 
Financials  FY 2013). !
The Preliminary Unaudited Financials for Fiscal Year 2014 indicate a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio of 
-2.17 (see Fixed Charge Coverage Ration Comparison). !
The net operating loss recorded in FY 2014 led to the fixed charge coverage ratio deficit. This is directly 
attributable to the causes outlined in the response to item 2a. Net Income: increased expenses related to 
facilities, improvements, and administrative staffing. !
The school has sufficient cash available ( in the form of short term lines of credit and loans) to augment 
cash flow to fund the fixed charge deficit for the foreseeable future (see Note 9 - Lines of Credit, Audited 
Financials  FY 2013). !
Net Income for FY 2015 will be significantly improved over previous years (see Profit & Loss Projection 
FY 2015) due to significantly increased local revenue from donations, and increased student enrollment 
driven by the new facilities. !
Based on current budgetary projections, the school should record a Functional Net Income in excess of 
$725,000 in FY 2015 (see Profit & Loss Projection FY 2015). Should the school perform to plan in FY 
2015, a Change in Net Assets in excess of $725,000 will be achieved, resulting in a Fixed Charge 
Coverage Ratio of 1.70 (see Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio Comparison). This would increase the 
school’s rating to “Meets Standard” for item 2c. Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio. !
Administrative Oversight & Governance 
Budgeted revenue and spending as compared to actual activities are reviewed on a day to day basis by 
Administration. All adjustments to spending in response to anticipated underperformance in revenue or 
projected overspending are also made on a weekly basis by Administration. All unscheduled expenses 
(expenses not included in the school’s operating budget at the beginning of the operating period) are first 
reviewed to establish whether or not budget capacity exists for the expenditure prior to authorization.  !
Upon review by administration, should an unscheduled expense be deemed necessary, budget capacity 
will be moved from an expense line where it is not needed to the expense line where the unscheduled 
expense will be booked, prior to encumbrance of the expense. The school has also established additional 
contingency as part of each expense object grouping. This funding can be used as a last resort for 
unscheduled expenses occurring later in the fiscal year that are deemed necessary but cannot be paid for 
through reallocation of budget capacity from another expense line.  !
Budget performance is reviews weekly by the Corporate Executives (President, Vice President and 
Secretary), who also monitor and report to the Board of Directors the Statements of Activities, Budget 
Performance, and statement of Cash Flows as part of their weekly meetings. !
Budget performance is reviewed quarterly by the Board of Directors, who also monitors the Statement of 
Activities, Budget Performance, and Statement of Cash Flows as part of their quarterly regular session 
meetings. 







EXHIBIT	
  CONTENT:	
  
AUDITED	
   FINANCIAL	
   STATEMENT	
   FOR	
   FY2013	
  …………………………………………………………...	
   1 
SETTLEMENT	
   STATEMENT	
   FOR	
   FACILITIES	
   PURCHASE	
  ………………………………………………….	
   25 
GRANT	
  AWARD	
  LETTER	
  ………………………………………………………………………………………….	
  26 
PROFIT	
  AND	
  LOSS	
  FY2014	
  ………………………………………………………………..…………………….28 
PROFIT	
  AND	
  LOSS	
  PROJECTION	
  FY2015	
  …………………………………………………………………….	
  29 
FIXED	
  CHARGE	
  COVERAGE	
  RATIO	
  COMPARISON	
  …………………………...…………………………….…..30
Balance Sheet Comparison...........................................................................................................31	
  


Page 1







Page 2







Page 3







Page 4







Page 5







Page 6







Page 7







Page 8







Page 9







Page 10







Page 11







Page 12







Page 13







Page 14







Page 15







Page 16







Page 17







Page 18







Page 19







Page 20







Page 21







Page 22







Page 23







Page 24







Page 25







  
 


 


Page 1 of 1 


 


 


First American Title Insurance Company 
National Commercial Services 


2425 E. Camelback Road, Suite 300 • Phoenix, AZ 85016 
 


Office Phone:(602)567-8100  Office Fax:(602)567-8101 


 


Estimated Settlement Statement 


 
 


Property: 3916 East Paradise Lane, Phoenix, AZ 85032 File No: NCS-646117A-PHX1 


 Officer: Sheila Hunter/sfh 


 Estimated Settlement Date:   


 Disbursement Date:  


 Print Date: 07/31/2014, 6:32 AM 


Buyer:      CIC Hillcrest I LLC 
Address:  
Seller:      Hillcrest Academy, Inc. 
Address: 3916 East Paradise Lane, Phoenix, AZ 85032 
Lender: Available 
Address:  
New Loan No.:  


 
Buyer Charge Buyer Credit Charge Description Seller Charge Seller Credit 


  Consideration:   


24,508,500.00  Total Consideration  24,508,500.00 


     


  Title/Escrow Charges to:     


  Sub Escrow Fee  to First American Title Insurance 
Company National Commercial Services 


750.00  


  Policy-Extended ALTA 2006 Lender's  (24,508,500.00)  to 
First American Title Insurance Company National 
Commercial Services 


30,610.00  


  Endorsement-Zoning-ALTA 3.1 - L  to First American Title 
Insurance Company National Commercial Services 


3,056.00  


  Endorsement(s)-Loan Policy - L  Bunder Rate  to First 
American Title Insurance Company National Commercial 
Services 


500.00  


  Estimated Recording Fees  to First American Title 
Insurance Company National Commercial Services 


100.00  


     


  Disbursements Paid:   


  Mesa Gilbert Land Purchase (652976)  to Hillcrest 
Academy, Inc. 


2,454,810.27  


  Phoenix Pardes Jewish Purchase (646117)  to Hillcrest 
Academy, Inc. 


4,680,603.47  


  Phoenix adjacent land Purchase Wyatt (664775)  to 
Hillcrest Academy, Inc. 


415,252.17  


  Monies Due  to Gables Development 2,942,245.98  


  Monies Due  to Christensen Holdings, LLC 901,087.00  


  Monies Due  to Varsity Staffing, LLC 278,502.16  


  Monies Due  to American Charter Development 160,000.00  


  Monies Due  to Gen Corp Mortgage 202,500.00  


  Rehab & Construction  to Bank of America 12,433,498.95  


     


 24,508,500.00 Cash (X From) (  To) Buyer   


  Cash (X To) (  From) Seller 4,984.00  


     


24,508,500.00 24,508,500.00 Totals 24,508,500.00 24,508,500.00 


 
 
Notice – This Estimated Settlement Statement is subject to changes, corrections or additions at 


the time of final computation of Escrow Settlement Statement. 
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Jul '13 - Jun 14


Ordinary Income/Expense
Income


1000 · Revenue From Local Sources 62,024.42
3000 · Revenue From State Sources 556,469.60
4000 · Revenue From Federal Sources 56,643.07


Total Income 675,137.09


Gross Profit 675,137.09


Expense
6200 · Employee Benefits 1,984.35
6300 · Purch Professional Services 886,906.80
6400 · Purchased Property Services 140,316.48
6500 · Other Purchased Services 164,742.62
6600 · Supplies 174,207.29
6800 · Other Expenses. 439,248.06


Total Expense 1,807,405.60


Net Ordinary Income -1,132,268.51


Other Income/Expense
Other Income


Other Income 10,625.85


Total Other Income 10,625.85


Other Expense
Depreciation 147,538.36
Amortization 18,265.92


Total Other Expense 165,804.28


Net Other Income -155,178.43


Net Income -1,287,446.94


Hillcrest Academy, Inc
Profit & Loss - Preliminary


July 2013 through June 2014
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 Hillcrest Academy, Inc.


Profit & Loss Projection
FY 2015


Ordinary Income/Expense


Income


Total Revenue From Fed & State Grants


Total Revenue From Local Sources


Total Revenue From State Sources


Total Income


Debt Service


Total Debt Service


Expense


Total Personal Services


Total Purch Professional & Tech Svcs


Total Purchased Property Services


Total Other Purchased Services


Total Supplies


Total Other Expenses.


Utilities


Total Expense


Balance Sheet Activity*


Net Income**


*Balance Sheet Activity is used in the above fincial report to denote the 


expenses and costs related to the acquisition of assets, the sale of assets, and 


the satisfaction of liabilities. These items would not normally appear on a Profit 


and Loss Statement, however for the purposes of deriving a Functional Net 


Operating Income they were included.


** Net Income has been adjusted for the purpose of this report to include items 


that would normally be expressed in a Statement of Cash Flows. The Net 


Income listed above is Net of the Balance Sheet Activity listed above. The result 


is a conceptual Functional Net Operating Income (similar to Cash Position at 


close).


7,116,850.11


728,274.29


25,591,075.60


775,745.00
102,500.00


227,790.00
154,120.00


71,900.00
124,120.00


864,724.67


4,795,950.44


6,955,590.00
33,436,200.00


212,530.00
26,268,080.00


Total Enrollment 1160


Student Enrollment (Campus 2) 466


2014-2015


Student Enrollment (Campus 1) 694
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Hillcrest Academy


 Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio Comparison
 FY 2013, FY 2014, FY 2015


Jul '14 - Jun 15 Jul '13 - Jun 14 Jul '12 - Jun 13


Ordinary Income/Expense


Adjusted Earnings


Change in Net Assets 728,274.29 -1,287,447.00 -705,139.00


Deprecitaion & Amortization 165,804.00 165,804.00 153,274.00


Interest Expense 290,004.00 314,939.00 350,917.00


Lease Expense 871,925.00 7,200.00 39,792.00


Total Adjusted Earnings 2,056,007.29 -799,504.00 -161,156.00


Fixed Costs


Interest Expense* 290,004.00 314,939.00 350,917.00


Lease Expense 871,925.00 7,200.00 39,792.00


Current Portion 50,000.00 45,833.00 0.00


Total Fixed Costs 1,211,929.00 367,972.00 390,709.00


Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio 1.70 -2.17 -0.41


Page 31







 Hillcrest Academy, Inc


 Balance Sheet Comparison
 As of June 30, 2013, 2014 and 2015


Jun 30, 13 Jun 30, 14 Jun 30, 15


ASSETS


Current Assets


Checking/Savings


Total Checking/Savings 9,738.30 42,631.41 781,425.05


Accounts Receivable


Total Accounts Receivable 92,893.61 51,123.55 0.00


Other Current Assets


Total Other Current Assets 4,449.17 162,017.87 4,449.17


Total Current Assets 107,081.08 255,772.83 785,874.22


Fixed Assets


Total Fixed Assets 2,639,431.87 2,710,226.47 2,573,963.11


Other Assets


Total Other Assets 863,138.56 842,676.83 822,215.10


TOTAL ASSETS 3,609,651.51 3,808,676.13 4,182,052.43


LIABILITIES & EQUITY


Liabilities


Current Liabilities


Accounts Payable


Total Accounts Payable 121,760.16 90,122.96 12,000.00


Other Current Liabilities


Current Notes Payable 1,006,908.66 2,529,887.80 55,000.00


Payroll Liabilities 43,956.95 62,175.22 0.00


Total Other Current Liabilities 1,050,865.61 2,592,063.02 55,000.00


Total Current Liabilities 1,172,625.77 2,682,185.98 67,000.00


Long Term Liabilities


Pima County IDA Bond 3,954,166.63 3,904,166.66 3,849,166.66


Ford Motor Credit - 8557 0.00 16,851.66 11,851.66


Ford Motor Credit - 7651 0.00 16,851.66 11,851.66


Pacific Office Automation 10,754.00 3,962.00 0.00


Total Long Term Liabilities 3,964,920.63 3,941,831.98 3,872,869.98


Total Liabilities 5,137,546.40 6,624,017.96 3,939,869.98


Equity


Net Assets -341,865.66 -341,865.66 31,663.10


1110 · Retained Earnings -588,438.48 -1,186,029.23 -517,754.94


Net Income -597,590.75 -1,287,446.94 728,274.29


Total Equity -1,527,894.89 -2,815,341.83 242,182.45


TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 3,609,651.51 3,808,676.13 4,182,052.43


Page 32












New School Site Notification Request


http://online.asbcs.az.gov/forms/display/14581[9/3/2014 12:35:46 PM]


Charterholder Info


Downloads


Form Fields


Attachments


New School Site Notification Request


Charter Holder Representative


Name:
Hillcrest Academy, Inc.


CTDS:
07-87-04-000


Mailing Address:
4710 East Baseline
Mesa, AZ 85206


View detailed info


Name:
Ryan Christensen


Phone Number:
480-325-8950


Download all files


Name of school
Hillcrest Academy - Phoenix


Grade levels to be served


K
1st
2nd
3rd
4th
5th
6th


First day of Operation
09/10/2014


Physical Address
3916 E Paradise Lane 
Phoenix, AZ 85032


Physical Phone Number
602-241-1111


Physical Fax Number
602-733-9342


Mailing Address
4710 E Baseline Road
Mesa, AZ 85206


Mailing Phone Number
4809240888


Mailing Fax Number
4803532832


Board Minutes — Download File


Occupancy Documentation


Download File — Signed Occupancy Compliance Assurance and Understanding. The Certificate of Occupancy and Fire inspections are scheduled for Friday
August 15th


Lease agreement or proof of purchase for facility — Download File


Copy of Fingerprint Clearance Card for school site administrator — Download File



http://online.asbcs.az.gov/charterholders/information/19/hillcrest-academy-inc

http://online.asbcs.az.gov/charterholders/information/19/hillcrest-academy-inc

http://online.asbcs.az.gov/forms/download_zip/14581

http://online.asbcs.az.gov/forms/file/forms/new-school-site/14581/board_minutes.pdf

http://online.asbcs.az.gov/forms/file/forms/new-school-site/14581/occupancy_and_fire_marshal_occupancy-compliance-assurance-and-understanding1407954399.pdf

http://online.asbcs.az.gov/forms/file/forms/new-school-site/14581/lease_agreement.pdf

http://online.asbcs.az.gov/forms/file/forms/new-school-site/14581/fcc_card.pdf





New School Site Notification Request


http://online.asbcs.az.gov/forms/display/14581[9/3/2014 12:35:46 PM]


Signature


Copy of liability insurance coverage — Download File


Narrative — Download File


Additional Information*
No documents were uploaded.


Charter Representative Signature
Ryan Christensen 08/13/2014



http://online.asbcs.az.gov/forms/file/forms/new-school-site/14581/insurance_coverage.pdf

http://online.asbcs.az.gov/forms/file/forms/new-school-site/14581/expansion_narrative.pdf





	
  


4710	
  E	
  BASELINE	
  ROAD	
  	
  ! 	
  	
  MESA	
  	
  ! 	
  	
  ARIZONA	
  	
  ! 	
  	
  PHONE:	
  480.325.8950	
  ! 	
  	
  FAX:	
  480.353.2832	
  
WWW.hillcresthawks.com	
  


	
  


8/1/2014	
  
	
  
	
  
Arizona	
  State	
  Board	
  for	
  Charter	
  Schools	
  
1616	
  West	
  Adams	
  Street	
  Suite	
  170	
  
Phoenix,	
  Arizona	
  85007	
  
	
  
	
  
To	
  Whom	
  It	
  May	
  Concern:	
  
	
  
The	
   purpose	
   of	
   this	
   letter	
   is	
   to	
   explain	
   the	
   overall	
   plan	
   for	
   Hillcrest	
   Academy	
   and	
  
International	
  Charter	
  School	
  of	
  Arizona	
  (“ICSA”)	
  as	
  they	
  plan	
  to	
  merge	
  entities.	
  
	
  
It	
  is	
  the	
  overall	
  goal	
  to	
  merge	
  the	
  two	
  existing	
  entities	
  and	
  become	
  one	
  organization.	
  
	
  
Currently	
   Hillcrest	
   operates	
   a	
   Charter	
   School	
   in	
   Mesa	
   Arizona	
   serving	
   grades	
   K-­‐8	
   with	
   an	
  
enrolment	
  cap	
  of	
  400	
  students.	
  
	
  
Currently	
   ICSA	
   operates	
   a	
   Charter	
   School	
   in	
   Phoenix	
   Arizona	
   serving	
   grades	
   5-­‐12	
  with	
   an	
  
enrollment	
  cap	
  of	
  400	
  students.	
  
	
  
ASBCS	
  has	
  already	
  approved	
  the	
  follow	
  to	
  facilitate	
  such	
  merger:	
  
	
  


1) Aligned	
  the	
  Governing	
  Bodies	
  of	
  the	
  two	
  entities	
  
2) Aligned	
  the	
  Mission,	
  Vision	
  and	
  Moto	
  of	
  the	
  two	
  entities	
  
3) Aligned	
  the	
  Program	
  of	
  Instruction	
  for	
  the	
  two	
  entities	
  


	
  
We	
  plan	
  to	
  accomplish	
  the	
  following	
  with	
  the	
  help	
  and	
  approval	
  of	
  ASBCS:	
  
	
  


1) New	
  School	
  Site	
  notification	
  for	
  Hillcrest	
  to	
  3761	
  South	
  Power	
  Road	
  effective	
  8-­‐18-­‐14.	
  
This	
  site	
  is	
  still	
  under	
  Construction	
  with	
  a	
  final	
  inspection	
  for	
  Certificate	
  of	
  Occupancy	
  
and	
  Fire	
  Marshal	
  inspection	
  August	
  13,	
  2014.	
  


2) New	
  school	
  notification	
  for	
  ICSA	
  to	
  3916	
  East	
  Paradise	
  Lane,	
  Phoenix	
  Arizona	
  85032	
  
effective	
  8-­‐18-­‐2014.	
  Previously	
  occupied	
  by	
  Pardes	
  Jewish	
  Day	
  School.	
  


3) Additional	
  School	
  Site	
  Notification	
  for	
  Hillcrest	
  at	
  the	
  ICSA	
  campus	
  effective	
  8-­‐18-­‐2014	
  
4) Additional	
  School	
  Site	
  Notification	
  for	
  ICSA	
  at	
  the	
  Hillcrest	
  campus	
  effective	
  8-­‐18-­‐2014	
  
5) Decrease	
  grade	
  levels	
  served	
  by	
  Hillcrest	
  to	
  K	
  through	
  6	
  
6) Decrease	
  grade	
  levels	
  served	
  by	
  ICSA	
  to	
  7-­‐12	
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8/1/2014	
  
	
  
	
  
Arizona	
  State	
  Board	
  for	
  Charter	
  Schools	
  
1616	
  West	
  Adams	
  Street	
  Suite	
  170	
  
Phoenix,	
  Arizona	
  85007	
  
	
  
	
  
To	
  Whom	
  It	
  May	
  Concern:	
  
	
  
The	
   purpose	
   of	
   this	
   letter	
   is	
   to	
   explain	
   the	
   overall	
   plan	
   for	
   Hillcrest	
   Academy	
   and	
  
International	
  Charter	
  School	
  of	
  Arizona	
  (“ICSA”)	
  as	
  they	
  plan	
  to	
  merge	
  entities.	
  
	
  
It	
  is	
  the	
  overall	
  goal	
  to	
  merge	
  the	
  two	
  existing	
  entities	
  and	
  become	
  one	
  organization.	
  
	
  
Currently	
   Hillcrest	
   operates	
   a	
   Charter	
   School	
   in	
   Mesa	
   Arizona	
   serving	
   grades	
   K-­‐8	
   with	
   an	
  
enrolment	
  cap	
  of	
  400	
  students.	
  
	
  
Currently	
   ICSA	
   operates	
   a	
   Charter	
   School	
   in	
   Phoenix	
   Arizona	
   serving	
   grades	
   5-­‐12	
  with	
   an	
  
enrollment	
  cap	
  of	
  400	
  students.	
  
	
  
ASBCS	
  has	
  already	
  approved	
  the	
  follow	
  to	
  facilitate	
  such	
  merger:	
  
	
  


1) Aligned	
  the	
  Governing	
  Bodies	
  of	
  the	
  two	
  entities	
  
2) Aligned	
  the	
  Mission,	
  Vision	
  and	
  Moto	
  of	
  the	
  two	
  entities	
  
3) Aligned	
  the	
  Program	
  of	
  Instruction	
  for	
  the	
  two	
  entities	
  


	
  
We	
  plan	
  to	
  accomplish	
  the	
  following	
  with	
  the	
  help	
  and	
  approval	
  of	
  ASBCS:	
  
	
  


1) New	
  School	
  Site	
  notification	
  for	
  Hillcrest	
  to	
  3761	
  South	
  Power	
  Road	
  effective	
  8-­‐18-­‐14.	
  
This	
  site	
  is	
  still	
  under	
  Construction	
  with	
  a	
  final	
  inspection	
  for	
  Certificate	
  of	
  Occupancy	
  
and	
  Fire	
  Marshal	
  inspection	
  August	
  13,	
  2014.	
  


2) New	
  school	
  notification	
  for	
  ICSA	
  to	
  3916	
  East	
  Paradise	
  Lane,	
  Phoenix	
  Arizona	
  85032	
  
effective	
  8-­‐18-­‐2014.	
  Previously	
  occupied	
  by	
  Pardes	
  Jewish	
  Day	
  School.	
  


3) Additional	
  School	
  Site	
  Notification	
  for	
  Hillcrest	
  at	
  the	
  ICSA	
  campus	
  effective	
  8-­‐18-­‐2014	
  
4) Additional	
  School	
  Site	
  Notification	
  for	
  ICSA	
  at	
  the	
  Hillcrest	
  campus	
  effective	
  8-­‐18-­‐2014	
  
5) Decrease	
  grade	
  levels	
  served	
  by	
  Hillcrest	
  to	
  K	
  through	
  6	
  
6) Decrease	
  grade	
  levels	
  served	
  by	
  ICSA	
  to	
  7-­‐12	
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The	
  above	
  approvals	
  are	
  in	
  an	
  effort	
  to	
  merge	
  the	
  schools.	
  At	
  this	
  time	
  there	
  is	
  no	
  additional	
  
student	
  cap	
  increase	
  being	
  requested.	
  	
  The	
  above	
  approvals	
  allow	
  the	
  current	
  aligned	
  boards	
  
to	
  manage	
  each	
  charter	
  at	
  both	
  locations	
  and	
  serve	
  all	
  grade	
  levels.	
  	
  
Once	
   all	
   of	
   these	
   approvals	
   are	
   completed	
   and	
   the	
   schools	
   can	
   successfully	
   complete	
   their	
  
missions,	
  the	
  two	
  entities	
  will	
  complete	
  the	
  merger	
  process	
  between	
  the	
  two	
  entities.	
  
	
  
I	
   hope	
   that	
   this	
   letter	
   helps	
   explain	
   what	
   we	
   are	
   trying	
   to	
   accomplish.	
   If	
   you	
   have	
   any	
  
questions	
  please	
  feel	
  free	
  to	
  give	
  me	
  a	
  call	
  at	
  480-­‐399-­‐0655	
  
	
  
	
  
Sincerely,	
  
	
  


	
  
Ryan	
  Christensen	
  
President	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  







Hillcrest	
  Academy,	
  Inc	
  
Minutes	
  of	
  the	
  Meeting	
  of	
  the	
  Board	
  of	
  Directors	
  


Held	
  February	
  27,	
  2014	
  
	
  
The	
   meeting	
   convened	
   at	
   3:10	
   pm	
   at	
   the	
   4710	
   East	
   Baseline	
   Road	
   in	
   Mesa,	
   AZ.	
  	
  
Present	
  were	
   Ryan	
   Christensen,	
   Jerad	
   Hunsaker,	
  Michael	
   Scott.	
   	
   Members	
   Absent	
  
were	
  Charlotte	
  Day	
  and	
  Stephen	
  Humay.	
  Chairman	
  Ryan	
  Christensen	
  conducted	
  the	
  
meeting.	
   Members	
   of	
   the	
   public	
   present	
   were	
   Laurent	
   Badoux	
   (by	
   phone)	
   and	
  
Michelle	
  Shelby	
  (by	
  phone	
  joined	
  at	
  4:01)	
  
	
  


1. Minutes	
  of	
  the	
  previous	
  regular	
  meeting	
  had	
  been	
  previously	
  emailed	
  to	
  the	
  
members.	
  	
  No	
  Corrections	
  were	
  requested.	
  	
  Jerad	
  moved	
  and	
  Mike	
  seconded	
  
to	
  accept	
  the	
  minutes.	
  Voting	
  was	
  unanimous	
  in	
  the	
  affirmative.	
  
	
  


2. FY2013	
   Audit	
   was	
   presented	
   to	
   the	
   board.	
   Discussion	
   of	
   findings	
   and	
  
possible	
   corrective	
   action	
   plans	
   were	
   discussed.	
   There	
   was	
   discussion	
  
regarding	
   the	
   settlement	
   statement	
   agreement	
   received	
   from	
   ASBCS	
   staff.	
  
Ryan	
  motioned	
  and	
   Jerad	
  Seconded	
   to	
   accept	
   the	
   Settlement	
  Agreement	
   as	
  
presented	
  by	
  ASBCS	
  Staff.	
  Voting	
  was	
  unanimous	
  in	
  the	
  affirmative.	
  
	
  


3. The	
  board	
  discussed	
  options	
  and	
  information	
  gathered	
  by	
  Ryan	
  Christensen	
  
&	
   Laurent	
   Badoux	
   from	
   consultants,	
   legal	
   and	
   a	
  meeting	
   with	
   ASBCS	
   staff	
  
regarding	
   possible	
   relationship	
   options	
   between	
   Hillcrest	
   Academy	
   and	
  
International	
  Charter	
  School	
  of	
  Arizona.	
  The	
  pros	
  and	
  cons	
  of	
  maintaining	
  a	
  
Charter	
   Management	
   Agreement	
   were	
   discussed.	
   The	
   Pros	
   and	
   Cons	
   of	
  
merging	
  both	
   entities	
  were	
  discussed.	
   	
  Ryan	
  motioned	
   and	
   Jerad	
   Seconded	
  
that	
  with	
   the	
   approval	
   of	
  Arizona	
   State	
  Board	
   for	
   Charter	
   Schools	
   (ASBCS)	
  
approval,	
   Hillcrest	
   Academy	
   and	
   International	
   Charter	
   School	
   of	
   Arizona	
  
work	
  to	
  merge	
  together	
  in	
  the	
  following	
  order	
  1)	
  align	
  the	
  two	
  boards	
  with	
  
the	
   same	
  membership	
   2)	
   align	
   the	
  Mission	
   and	
   Vision	
   of	
   each	
   3)	
   align	
   the	
  
program	
  of	
  instruction	
  of	
  each	
  and	
  4)	
  align	
  grade	
  levels	
  so	
  that	
  there	
  are	
  no	
  
overlapping	
  grades.	
  Voting	
  was	
  unanimous	
  in	
  the	
  affirmative.	
  


	
  
4. Upon	
  Approval	
  from	
  ASBCS,	
  Hillcrest	
  accepts	
  Laurent	
  Badoux	
  as	
  a	
  new	
  board	
  


member.	
  	
  
a. Ryan	
  motioned	
  to	
  accept	
  Laurent	
  Badoux	
  as	
  a	
  new	
  board	
  member	
  for	
  


Hillcrest	
  Academy.	
  
b. Mike	
  seconded	
  the	
  motion	
  	
  
c. All	
  board	
  members	
  agreed.	
  


	
  
5. Upon	
  Approval	
   from	
  ASBCS,	
  Hillcrest	
  accepts	
  Gordon	
  Digby	
  as	
  a	
  new	
  board	
  


member.	
  	
  
a. Ryan	
  motioned	
   to	
   accept	
  Gordon	
  Digby	
  as	
   a	
  new	
  board	
  member	
   for	
  


Hillcrest	
  Academy.	
  
b. Mike	
  seconded	
  the	
  motion	
  	
  
c. All	
  board	
  members	
  agreed.	
  


	
  
6. Upon	
  Approval	
  from	
  ASBCS,	
  Hillcrest	
  accepts	
  Michelle	
  Shelby	
  as	
  a	
  new	
  board	
  


member.	
  	
  







a. Ryan	
  motioned	
  to	
  accept	
  Michelle	
  Shelby	
  as	
  a	
  new	
  board	
  member	
  for	
  
Hillcrest	
  Academy.	
  


b. Mike	
  seconded	
  the	
  motion	
  	
  
c. All	
  board	
  members	
  agreed.	
  


	
  
7. Upon	
   Approval	
   from	
   ASBCS,	
   Hillcrest	
   accepts	
   the	
   resignation	
   of	
   Charlotte	
  


Day.	
  
a. Ryan	
  motioned	
  to	
  accept	
  Mrs.	
  Day’s	
  resignation.	
  
b. Jerad	
  seconded	
  the	
  motion	
  
c. All	
  board	
  members	
  Agree.	
  


	
  
8. Upon	
   Approval	
   from	
   ASBCS,	
   Hillcrest	
   accepts	
   the	
   resignation	
   of	
   Stephan	
  


Humay.	
  
a. Ryan	
  motioned	
  to	
  accept	
  Stephan’s	
  resignation.	
  
b. Jerad	
  seconded	
  the	
  motion	
  
c. All	
  board	
  members	
  Agree.	
  


	
  
9. The	
  Board	
  was	
  presented	
  with	
  a	
  revised	
  Mission	
  and	
  Vision	
  statement	
   that	
  


was	
  prepared	
  by	
  Staff.	
  	
  
a. Jerad	
   motioned	
   to	
   accept	
   Upon	
   Approval	
   from	
   ASBCS,	
   the	
   new	
  


mission	
  and	
  vision	
  statement	
  as	
  presented.	
  
b. Mike	
  seconded	
  the	
  motion	
  	
  
c. All	
  board	
  members	
  agreed	
  


	
  
10. The	
   Board	
   discussed	
   the	
   use	
   of	
   the	
   Hillcrest	
   Academy	
   name	
   and	
   logo	
   to	
  


market	
  for	
  ICSA.	
  	
  
a. Ryan	
  motioned	
   to	
   allow	
   ICSA	
   to	
   use	
   Hillcrest	
   Academy’s	
   Name	
   and	
  


Logo	
   and	
   to	
   set	
   up	
   with	
   the	
   state	
   of	
   Arizona	
   a	
   doing	
   business	
   as	
  
Hillcrest	
  Academy.	
  


b. Jerad	
  Seconded	
  the	
  motion	
  
c. All	
  board	
  members	
  agreed	
  


	
  
11. The	
  Board	
  was	
  presented	
  with	
  a	
  revised	
  aligned	
  program	
  of	
  instruction	
  that	
  


was	
  prepared	
  by	
  Staff.	
  	
  
a. Mike	
   motioned	
   to	
   accept	
   Upon	
   Approval	
   from	
   ASBCS,	
   the	
   revised	
  


program	
  of	
  instruction	
  	
  
b. Ryan	
  seconded	
  the	
  motion	
  
c. All	
  board	
  members	
  agreed	
  


	
  
12. 	
  The	
   board	
   discussed	
   the	
   progress	
   on	
   facilities.	
   The	
   board	
   was	
   presented	
  


with	
  the	
  ability	
  to	
  move	
  the	
  school	
  site	
  from	
  its	
  Baseline	
  location	
  into	
  a	
  new	
  
facility	
  with	
  10	
  acres	
  of	
  land	
  located	
  South	
  of	
  the	
  South	
  East	
  Corner	
  of	
  Power	
  
Road	
   and	
   Elliot.	
   The	
   Board	
   discussed	
   the	
   benefits	
   of	
   the	
   new	
   site	
   and	
   the	
  
ability	
   to	
   build	
   a	
   building	
   suitable	
   to	
   its	
   Mission	
   and	
   Vision.	
   The	
   Board	
  
discussed	
  the	
  growing	
  demand	
  in	
  the	
  area	
  of	
  the	
  new	
  site	
  and	
  the	
  ability	
  to	
  
fill	
  the	
  school	
  with	
  current	
  demographics.	
  


a. Jerad	
   motioned	
   and	
   Mike	
   seconded	
   that	
   with	
   ASBCS	
   approval,	
  
Hillcrest	
  enter	
  into	
  a	
  lease	
  agreement	
  effective	
  7/1/2014	
  on	
  the	
  new	
  
build-­‐to-­‐suite	
  location.	
  







b. All	
  board	
  members	
  agreed	
  Ryan	
  Abstained.	
  	
  
	
  


13. The	
  Board	
  discussed	
  new	
  facilities	
  in	
  Phoenix	
  to	
  align	
  with	
  ICSA.	
  The	
  board	
  
was	
  presented	
  with	
  the	
  ability	
  to	
  enter	
  into	
  a	
  lease	
  agreement	
  for	
  an	
  existing	
  
facility	
  located	
  at	
  40th	
  Street	
  and	
  Paradise	
  Lane.	
  	
  


a. Jerad	
  motioned	
  and	
  mike	
  seconded	
   that	
  with	
  ASBCS	
  approval	
   for	
  an	
  
expansion	
   site,	
   that	
  Hillcrest	
   enters	
   into	
   a	
   lease	
   agreement	
   effective	
  
7/1/2014.	
  


b. All	
  board	
  members	
  agreed.	
  Ryan	
  Abstained.	
  
	
  


14. The	
   board	
   discussed	
   with	
   both	
   new	
   facilities	
   that	
   Hillcrest	
   would	
   need	
   to	
  
increase	
   its	
   enrollment	
   cap.	
   The	
   board	
   reviewed	
   the	
   demographics	
   and	
  
student	
   enrollment	
   in	
   other	
   Charter	
   schools,	
   Private	
   schools	
   and	
   District	
  
Schools	
  surrounding	
  the	
  new	
  sites	
  and	
  reviewed	
  a	
  third	
  party	
  opinion	
  of	
  the	
  
enrollment	
  likelihood	
  for	
  both	
  of	
  these	
  areas.	
  


a. Ryan	
   motioned	
   and	
   Jerad	
   seconded	
   that	
   with	
   ASBCS	
   approval,	
  
Hillcrest	
  would	
  increase	
  its	
  enrollment	
  cap	
  from	
  400	
  to	
  1000.	
  	
  


b. All	
  members	
  agreed.	
  
	
  


15. The	
  board	
  discussed	
  the	
  grade	
  levels	
  of	
  each	
  charter	
  and	
  discussed	
  dropping	
  
7th	
  and	
  8th	
  grade	
  off	
  the	
  Hillcrest	
  Charter	
  to	
  align	
  with	
  ICSA.	
  	
  


a. Ryan	
  motioned	
  that	
  upon	
  Approval	
  from	
  ASBCS,	
  to	
  remove	
  the	
  7th	
  and	
  
8th	
   grades	
   from	
   the	
   Hillcrest	
   Charter	
   effect	
   7/1/2014	
   if	
   ASBCS	
   also	
  
approves	
  site	
  relocation,	
  site	
  expansion	
  and	
  enrollment	
  cap	
  increase.	
  


b. Jerad	
  seconded	
  the	
  motion	
  
c. All	
  board	
  members	
  agreed.	
  


	
  
Meeting	
  Adjourned	
  at	
  4:47pm	
  
	
  
The	
  undersigned	
  hereby	
  certifies	
  that	
  he	
  is	
  the	
  duly	
  elected	
  and	
  qualified	
  Secretary	
  
and	
  the	
  custodian	
  of	
  the	
  books	
  and	
  records	
  of	
  Hillcrest	
  Academy,	
  Inc.,	
  and	
  that	
  the	
  
foregoing	
  is	
  a	
  true	
  record	
  of	
  the	
  proceedings	
  of	
  the	
  meeting	
  of	
  the	
  Board	
  of	
  Directors	
  
mentioned	
  above.	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
_____________________________	
  
Michael	
  Scott,	
  Secretary	
  



















	
  


4710	
  E	
  BASELINE	
  ROAD	
  	
  ! 	
  	
  MESA	
  	
  ! 	
  	
  ARIZONA	
  	
  ! 	
  	
  PHONE:	
  480.325.8950	
  ! 	
  	
  FAX:	
  480.353.2832	
  
WWW.hillcresthawks.com	
  


	
  


August	
  7,	
  2014	
  
	
  


Arizona	
  State	
  Board	
  for	
  Charter	
  Schools	
  
1616	
  West	
  Adams	
  Street	
  Suite	
  170	
  
Phoenix,	
  Arizona	
  85007	
  
	
  
	
  
To	
  Whom	
  It	
  May	
  Concern:	
  
	
  
The	
   purpose	
   of	
   this	
   letter	
   is	
   to	
   explain	
   the	
   facilities	
   plan	
   for	
   Hillcrest	
   Academy	
   and	
   International	
   Charter	
  
School	
  of	
  Arizona	
  (“ICSA”)	
  as	
  they	
  plan	
  to	
  merge	
  entities.	
  
	
  
Hillcrest	
   Academy	
   is	
   under	
   contract	
   to	
   purchase	
   the	
   facilities	
   located	
   at	
   3916	
   E	
   Paradise	
   Lane,	
   Phoenix	
  
Arizona	
  85032.	
  Until	
   the	
  purchase	
   is	
   recorded	
  and	
  closed,	
  Hillcrest	
  Academy	
  has	
  entered	
   into	
  a	
   lease	
  with	
  
Pardes	
  Jewish	
  Day	
  School	
  (property	
  seller).	
  
	
  
Attached	
  you	
  will	
  find	
  the	
  settlement	
  statement	
  for	
  the	
  purchase	
  of	
  the	
  property	
  that	
  was	
  prepared	
  by	
  First	
  
American	
  Title	
  
	
  
I	
  hope	
  that	
  this	
   letter	
  helps	
  explain	
  what	
  we	
  are	
  trying	
  to	
  accomplish.	
  If	
  you	
  have	
  any	
  questions	
  please	
  feel	
  
free	
  to	
  give	
  me	
  a	
  call	
  at	
  480-­‐399-­‐0655	
  
	
  
	
  
Sincerely,	
  
	
  


	
  
Ryan	
  Christensen	
  
President	
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First American Title Insurance Company 
National Commercial Services 


2425 E. Camelback Road, Suite 300 • Phoenix, AZ 85016 


 


                                     Office Phone: (602)567-8100    Office Fax: (602)567-8101 


 


Estimated Settlement Statement 


  


 


Property: 3916 East Paradise Lane, Phoenix, AZ 85032 File No: NCS-646117-PHX1 


 Officer: Sheila Hunter/sfh 


 Estimated Settlement Date:  01/31/2014 


 Disbursement Date:  


 Print Date: 04/28/2014, 10:30 AM 


Buyer:      Hillcrest Academy, Inc. 


Address: 4710 East Baseline Road, Mesa, AZ 85206 


Seller:      The Pardes Jewish Day School 


Address: 3916 East Paradise Lane, Phoenix, AZ 85032 


  


  


  
 


Buyer Charge Buyer Credit Charge Description Seller Charge Seller Credit 
  Consideration:   


5,000,000.00  Total Consideration  5,000,000.00 


     


  Deposits in Escrow:   


 75,000.00 Receipt No. 77171794 on 04/01/2014 by William Price Trust 


fbo Hillcrest Academy  


  


 25,000.00 Receipt No. 77170241 on 01/31/2014 by Robert 


Lawson/William Price Trust fbo Hillcrest Academy, Inc.  


  


 25,000.00 Receipt No. 77170582 on 02/18/2014 by Lawson Financial 


Corp fbo Hillcrest Academy, Inc.  


  


 75,000.00 Receipt No. 77170985 on 03/05/2014 by Lawson Trust fbo 


Hillcrest Academy, Inc.  


  


 50,000.00 Receipt No. 77169101 on 12/18/2013 by Lawson Financial 


Corporation fbo Hillcrest Academy, Inc.  


  


     


  Adjustments:   


150,000.00  Personal Property  150,000.00 


 12.53 IBA#4600031062   


     


  Commission:    


  Commission Paid at Settlement  to Land Advisors Organization 50,000.00  


     


  Payoff Loan(s):   


  Lender: Warren Heller and Susan Heller   


  Principal Balance  - Warren Heller and Susan Heller 4,750,000.00  


     


  Title/Escrow Charges to:     


2,408.00  Closing-Escrow Fee  to First American Title Insurance 


Company National Commercial Services 


2,408.00  


3,408.00  Policy-Extended ALTA 2006 Owner's (portion)  to First 


American Title Insurance Company National Commercial 


Services 


  


  Policy-Standard ALTA 2006 Owner's  to First American Title 


Insurance Company National Commercial Services 


6,816.00  


750.00  Endorsement-Zoning-ALTA 3.1 - O  to First American Title 


Insurance Company National Commercial Services 


  


500.00  Endorsements - Owners Policy  to First American Title 


Insurance Company National Commercial Services 


  


50.00  Estimated Recording Fees  to First American Title Insurance 


Company National Commercial Services 


50.00  


     


  Disbursements Paid:   


175,000.00  Release of Deposits  to The Pardes Jewish Day School, Inc.   


  Release of Deposit  to The Pardes Jewish Day School, Inc. 75,000.00  


     


 5,082,103.47 Cash (X From) (  To) Buyer   


  Cash (X To) (  From) Seller 265,726.00  


     


5,332,116.00 5,332,116.00 Totals 5,150,000.00 5,150,000.00 


 


Notice -- This Estimated Settlement Statement is subject to changes, corrections or 


additions at the time of final computation of Escrow Settlement Statement. 


 


Real Estate Taxes - Exempt - School 
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Estimated Settlement Statement 


   


Settlement Date:                                                                                                                        File No:    NCS-646117-PHX1 


Print Date: 04/28/2014 Officer: Sheila Hunter/sfh  
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All Personal Property Taxes - Exempt 


 


 


 


 BUYER (S): 
 


Hillcrest Academy, Inc., an Arizona corporation  
 


____________________________________  


By: Ryan Christensen, Its: President and CEO  
 


 
 


SELLER(S): 
 


The Pardes Jewish Day School, Inc., an Arizona non-profit 


corporation  
 


____________________________________  


By: Jennifer Rawicz, Its: Co-President, Board of Trustees  
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Financial Performance Response Evaluation Instrument 


Charter Holder Name: Hillcrest Academy, Inc.                       
Charter Holder Entity ID: 4328 
Date Submitted: August 13, 2014 


Required for: New School Site Notification Request 
Audit Year: 2013 
Evaluation Completed: August 21, 2014


 
Arizona State Board for Charter Schools (Board) staff completed the Financial Performance Response Evaluation Instrument to be used by the 
Board in its consideration of applicable requests made by the charter holder. “Not Acceptable” answers may adversely affect the Board’s 
decision regarding a charter holder’s request. 


 
 
Measure 


 
Acceptable 


Not 
Acceptable 


Not 
Applicable 


 
Comments 


 
1a. Going Concern 


 X  


 
According to the Independent Auditor’s Report, the fiscal year 2013 financial 
statements were prepared assuming the charter holder will continue as a going 
concern. The notes to the financial statements cite as the basis for the going 
concern that the charter holder has incurred significant decreases in 
unrestricted net assets such that the charter holder has net assets of 
($1,599,185) as of June 30, 2013. Additionally, the notes cite that the charter 
holder’s current liabilities exceeded current assets by $1,118,374 as of June 30, 
2013. Similar disclosures were included in the fiscal years 2011 and 2012 audits. 
 
The financial performance response indicates the going concern in fiscal year 
2013 is “directly attributable” to the net operating loss for the same period. The 
response also indicates that the charter holder expects the fiscal year 2014 
audit to include the going concern disclosure for the same reason. The fiscal 
year 2014 preliminary profit and loss statement projects net income of 
($1,287,446.94), resulting in net assets for fiscal year 2014 of ($2,815,341.83). 
For fiscal year 2013, the auditor also cited as the basis for the going concern the 
charter holder’s current liabilities exceeding current assets. Based on the 
Balance Sheet Comparison submitted with the response, this situation is 
projected to exist at June 30, 2014 with current liabilities exceeding current 
assets by $2,426,413.15. 
 
The financial performance response indicates the charter holder was able to 
restructure debt and was awarded a private grant to be used for the purpose of 
securing new facilities. To support these statements, the response includes 
copies of an “Estimated Settlement Statement” for facility purchases and the 
grant award letter. The response states, “Based on the revenues generated 
through both the Facilities Purchase (see Settlement Statement for Facilities 
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Measure 


 
Acceptable 


Not 
Acceptable 


Not 
Applicable 


 
Comments 


Purchase) and the private grant award (see Grant Award Letter), the school will 
satisfy all current liabilities (see Balance Sheet Comparison). These factors, 
combined with recording a positive Net Income through the measures 
described under Net Income 2a. ensures that the school will avoid a repeat 
Going Concern Finding in FY 2015.” Based on the Balance Sheet Comparison, 
the charter holder’s current assets are projected to exceed its current liabilities 
at June 30, 2015. While the “Profit & Loss Projection FY 2015” indicates the 
charter holder will end the year with positive net income, no support was 
provided for the enrollment numbers used in that projection (see “Net 
Income”). 
 
The financial performance response also includes a section on the charter 
holder’s “administrative oversight and governance” as it relates to financial 
operations. 
 


 
1b. Unrestricted Days Liquidity 


  X 


 


 
1c. Default 


  X 


 


 
2a. Net Income   


 X  


 
The financial performance response indicates the net loss for fiscal year 2013 
was the result of a combination of factors. According to the response, the 
charter holder projects a loss for fiscal year 2014 of ($1,287,447), which is the 
result of a combination of factors that will not reoccur past fiscal year 2014. The 
response includes information about the previous charter holder board and 
mentions the changes made to the board. While the response does not include 
support for the specific statements made, these statements are generally 
supported by the charter contract. According to the response, the fiscal year 
2013 net loss is attributable to “higher than normal operating costs related to 
facilities, improvements, and staffing as they began positioning to grow 
substantially in the 2014-2015 school year.” Regarding fiscal year 2014, the 
response indicates the charter holder board “made the decision to facilitate 
growth and to operate in the negative” during fiscal year 2014, relying on short 
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Measure 


 
Acceptable 


Not 
Acceptable 


Not 
Applicable 


 
Comments 


term loans and lines of credit. According to the response, “This decision was 
made with the knowledge that these short term loans would not only keep the 
school’s operations in tact, but would be satisfied upon entering into the 
agreement to secure the new facilities…” The response also indicates that this 
decision allowed the new administration to use fiscal year 2014 as a planning 
year “to establish the operational processes upon which to build a solid 
foundation, and to ensure the success of the 2014-2015 academic year and 
growth”. 
 
The financial performance response states, “The school’s facilities plan is 
complete, and receipt of funding is well underway (see Facilities Settlement 
Statement). This will ensure a positive Functional Net Operating Income for FY 
2015 based on a substantial increase in local funding via the award of a local 
grant designed to be used for securing facilities (see Grant Award Letter), as 
well as the anticipated additional income that will coincide with increased 
student enrollment driven by the school’s new facilities.” According to the 
response, the charter holder is projecting net income of approximately 
$728,000 for fiscal year 2015. The “Profit & Loss Projection FY 2015” is based on 
a combined enrollment of 1,160 (694 for “Campus 1” and 466 for “Campus 2”). 
The charter holder’s response does not include support for the enrollment 
numbers used in the fiscal year 2015 projection. As of August 14, 2014, Arizona 
Department of Education (ADE) reports show the charter holder reporting 228 
students (or an estimated count of 204.5) for the currently operating campus. 
Information is not available through ADE for the other campus as it has not yet 
been approved to operate. Assuming “Campus 1” is the campus currently 
operated by the charter holder, as of August 14, 2014, the actual number of 
students reported to ADE represents about one-third of the enrollment used for 
the fiscal year 2015 projection.  
 
The financial performance response also includes a section on the charter 
holder’s “administrative oversight and governance” as it relates to financial 
operations. 
 


 
2b. Cash Flow 
   X 
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Measure 


 
Acceptable 


Not 
Acceptable 


Not 
Applicable 


 
Comments 


 
2c. Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio 


 X  


 
The financial performance response indicates the net operating loss recorded in 
fiscal year 2013 led to the negative fixed charge coverage ratio. The response 
also indicates that the charter holder expects a similar result for fiscal year 2014 
for the same reason. According to the response, “The school has sufficient cash 
available (in the form of short term lines of credit and loans) to augment cash 
flow to fund the fixed charge deficit for the foreseeable future…” For fiscal year 
2013, the charter holder had 279.04 days liquidity available due primarily to 
available lines of credit balances of approximately $1 million.  
 
The financial performance response indicates the charter holder anticipates a 
fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.70 for fiscal year 2015 based on a projected 
change in net assets of more than $725,000. The response included a Fixed 
Charge Coverage Ratio Comparison for fiscal years 2013 through 2015. While 
the ratio value is the same as the Board’s for fiscal year 2013, the numbers used 
in the charter holder’s calculation do not match the numbers used by Board 
staff. As a result, Board staff cannot assume the numbers used in fiscal years 
2014 and 2015 would be the same as those that staff would use. The response 
does not include sufficient detail to determine how the “comparison” numbers 
were determined. Additionally, for fiscal year 2015, the ratio calculation 
includes $728,274.29 for the change in net assets. While the “Profit & Loss 
Projection FY 2015” indicates the charter holder will end the year with positive 
net income in this amount, no support was provided for the enrollment 
numbers used in that projection (see “Net Income”). 
 
The financial performance response also includes a section on the charter 
holder’s “administrative oversight and governance” as it relates to financial 
operations. 
 


 





